Council

AGENDA

Kent County Council

REGULATION COMMITTEE MEMBER PANEL

Friday, 31st October, 2008, at 2.00 pm Ask for: Andrew Tait
Swale 3, Sessions House, County Hall, Telephone 01622 694342
Maidstone

Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the meeting

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1. Membership

Mr M J Harrison (Chairman), Mr A D Crowther (Vice-Chairman), Mr I T N Jones, Mr
S J G Koowaree and Mrs P A V Stockell.

2. Declarations of Interest by Members for items on the agenda for this meeting

3. Application to register land known as "Coronation Field" and "the Village Green" at
Wittersham" as a new Village Green. (Pages 1 - 40)

4. Application to divert part of Public Footpath MR493 at Ditton (Pages 41 - 46)

5. Other items which the Chairman decides are Urgent

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Peter Sass
Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership
(01622) 694002

Thursday, 23 October 2008



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

Application to register land known as ‘Coronation Field’ and
‘the Village Green’ at Wittersham as a new Village Green

A report by the Director of Environment and Waste to Kent County Council’s Regulation
Committee Member Panel on Friday 31%' October 2008

Recommendation: | recommend that the County Council informs the applicant that
the application to register the land known as ‘Coronation Field’ and ‘the Village
Green’ at Wittersham has not been accepted.

Local Member: Mr. M. Hill OBE Unrestricted item

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land known as ‘Coronation
Field’ and ‘the Village Green’ at Wittersham as a new Village Green from local resident
Mrs. M. Lewis (“the applicant”). The application, dated 12" September 2006, was
allocated the application number 592. A plan of the site is shown at Appendix A to this
report and a copy of the application form is attached at Appendix B.

Procedure

2. The application has been made under section 13 of the Commons Registration Act 1965
and regulation 3 of the Commons Registration (New Land) Regulations 1969. These
regulations came into force on the 3 January 1970 and provide for applications to be
made to register new Village Greens in accordance with section 22 of the 1965 Act

3. Although the Commons Registration Act 1965 has now been replaced by the more
recent Commons Act 2006, since this application was received prior to the coming into
effect of the 2006 Act, it must be dealt with under the original legislation.

4. For the purpose of this application, therefore, section 22 of the 1965 Act (as amended
by section 98 of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) applies. It defines a
Village Green as:

land on which for not less than twenty years a significant number of the
inhabitants of any locality, or of any neighbourhood within a locality, have
indulged in lawful sports and pastimes as of right, and either:
(a) Continue to do so, or
(b) Have ceased to do so for not more than such period as may be
prescribed or determined in accordance with prescribed provisions’.

5. As a standard procedure set out in the regulations, the County Council must notify the
owners of the land, every local authority and any other known interested persons. It
must also publicise the application in a newspaper circulating in the local area and put
up notices on site to publicise the application. The publicity must state a period of at
least six weeks during which objections and representations can be made.

Page 1



The Case

6.

The area of land subject to this application (“the application site”) consists of two
adjoining (but distinct) areas of land situated at the centre of the village of Wittersham at
the junction of Stocks Road (the B2082) with The Street. The first area of land, known
as ‘The Village Green’, consists of a landscaped garden incorporating a surfaced
walkway, benches and formal planting. The second area of land, known as ‘Coronation
Field’, is essentially a playing field. Access to the application site is via two entrances,
one on Stocks Road and the other on The Street.

The application has been made on the grounds that the application site has become a
village green by virtue of the actual use of the land by the local inhabitants for a range of
recreational activities ‘as of right’ for more than 20 years. It is understood that, although
the application itself relates to usage over the 20 year period preceding the date of
application, there is evidence of a similar pattern of use dating from the mid-1950s,
when a local benefactor paid for the acquisition of the land as a ‘space’ for the village.

Included in the application were eight detailed statements of use from local residents
asserting that the application site has been available for free and uninhibited use for
lawful sports and pastimes over the last twenty years and beyond. A further 41 user
evidence questionnaires were also submitted in support of the application. A summary
of the user evidence is attached at Appendix C.

Consultations

9.

Consultations have been carried out as required and a large number of responses were
received.

10.Members should be aware that part of the application site (Coronation Field) was

11.

subject to two planning applications made to Ashford Borough Council in 2006 for the
provision of a new Village Hall and parking facilities. Although both planning applications
were subsequently withdrawn, the issue has remained very emotive within the village
and local opinion on the matter has been divided.

This already delicate situation was made worse by the circulation of an anonymous
leaflet throughout the village containing what can best be described as personal and
subjective views actively inviting people to raise objections to the application for Village
Green status. The leaflet bore a copy of the formal KCC Notice of Application on the
front and had the misleading appearance of having originated from KCC, to which the
applicant (along with other local residents) raised serious concerns. In response to this,
and to ensure the County Council’s impartial stance in relation to the determination of
the application, a short statement was produced which was read out by the Chairman of
the Parish Council at the Parish Meeting and included in any subsequent items of
correspondence received in relation to this application.

12.As a result of the consultation, 44 letters of objection to the application were received,

including a petition against the registration of the Coronation Field as a Village Green. A
summary of the letters of objection is attached at Appendix D. It should be noted that,
due undoubtedly to the circulation of the anonymous leaflet referred to above, many of

Page 2



the letters of objection refer to the benefits of the construction of the proposed Village
Hall and the perceived need for the Parish Council to retain control of the land.

13.However, it is important to note that the County Council is not able to take into
consideration issues relating to suitability, desirability or amenity when determining the
application, since the application must be determined solely on the legal tests set out in
section 22 of the Commons Registration Act 1965 (as described above).

14.In addition to the letters of objection summarised in Appendix D, a similar number of
‘standard format’ letters were also received. These letters, identically worded, stated
that objections were made on the grounds “that Coronation Field has not been observed
to be in general use by a significant number of local inhabitants; that the Parish Council,
as elected representatives of the community, should retain the right to manage the land
for the benefit of the whole community in Wittersham; and that there is already a Village
Green in Wittersham at Woodlands View and sufficient access to other publicly
maintained open space”.

15.1t is, however, difficult to place any great deal of weight to these, not least because
many arrived without a legible name or address, but more importantly because they
provide a shared view in response to an emotive issue rather than provide any actual
evidence in rebuttal to the application. Therefore, in considering the consultation
responses, Members should be mindful that it is the substantive content of the
objections received that is relevant, and not their number.

16. Another point of significance is that the vast majority of the letters of objection received
appear to relate only to Coronation Field (upon which it was proposed that the new
Village Hall should be built) rather than the more formal landscaped area known as ‘the
Village Green’. Indeed, some of those objecting to the registration of Coronation Field as
a Village Green have stated that they would have no objection to ‘the Village Green’
being formally registered as such: for example, one objector states “both the area
behind the War Memorial [the Village Green] and the larger playing field behind
[Coronation Field] were given as a space for the village, but only the landscaped garden
can truly be said to serve the purpose of a village green. | would be happy for this
smaller area only to be included in the Register of Village Greens”.

Landowner

17.The application site is owned entirely by Wittersham Parish Council, having been
bequeathed to the Council (by way of a conveyance in 1954) to be held as ‘a space for
the benefit of the Parish of Wittersham'.

18.The Parish Council has responded to the effect that it has felt it inappropriate to discuss
the matter at the Parish Council meeting (and as such to respond formally to the
application) since six of the seven Councillors had declared an interest in the matter.
However, the Parish Council advised that a public meeting had been held, during which
local residents had been encouraged to respond individually.

Page 3



Legal tests

19.1n dealing with an application to register a new Village Green the County Council must

consider the following criteria:

(a) Whether use of the land has been 'as of right'?

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and pastimes?

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular locality,
neighbourhood or a neighbourhood within a locality?

(d) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

(e) Whether use of the land ‘as of right’ by the inhabitants has continued up
until the date of application?

| shall now take each of these points and elaborate on them individually:

(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

20.The definition of the phrase ‘as of right’ has been considered in recent High Court case

21.

law. Following the judgement in the Sunningwell’ case, it is now considered that if a
person uses the land for a required period of time without force, secrecy or permission
(nec vi, nec clam, nec precario), and the landowner does not stop him or advertise the
fact that he has no right to be there, then rights are acquired and further use becomes
‘as of right’.

In this case, there is no evidence of any of the users ever having been verbally
challenged or physically prevented from gaining access to the land, nor is there any
suggestion that use of the land has been secretive. Indeed, the land was originally
acquired as a space for use by the inhabitants of the village. In his detailed witness
statement, Mr. Lyon (who has known the land since 1984) confirms that “...we have
been able to enter the site freely by the designated access points which are never
locked. We have entered without using any force and used the site in full and open view.
Our use has never been challenged by the landowner”. This view is echoed in the other
witness statements submitted in support of the application.

22.However, the key issue in this case concerns the third limb of the definition of ‘as of

right’, which relates to the granting of permission. Permission, in the context of access to
land, can take various forms: it can be express permission which is communicated to
local residents (e.g. by way of a notice placed in a prominent position on the site) or it
can be express permission which is not communicated to local residents (e.g. by way of
a formal deed intended to permit recreational use of the land). Alternatively, permission
may be implied when overt actions are taken by the landowner to communicate to the
users that their use is conditional and may be terminated at any time, for example, by
charging a fee for entry.

23.Finally, there may be instances where there is neither any express permission nor any

communication with the users. For example, such a situation may arise where land is
held in a statutory public trust (e.g. under the Public Health Act 1875 or the Open
Spaces Act 1910) for the specific purpose of public recreation; users may not

" R v. Oxfordshire County Council, ex p. Sunningwell Parish Council (2001)

Page 4



necessarily be aware of this trust, but their use is nonetheless ‘by right’ (because the
trust specifically provides a right for them to be there) and therefore not ‘as of right'.

24.1n this case, it was brought to the attention of the County Council that local byelaws had
been made in relation to the application site. A copy of the byelaws is attached at
Appendix E for reference. Whilst the content of the byelaws themselves are of little
significance, they refer to having been made under section 164 of the Public Health Act
1875. This has raised a serious question as to whether the application site is held under
the 1875 Act, the consequences of which are that the use of the land has been with
permission (i.e. by virtue of a statutory trust) and not ‘as of right. This issue is
considered in further detail later in this report.

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

25.Lawful sports and pastimes can be commonplace activities including dog walking,
children playing, picnicking and kite-flying. Legal principle does not require that rights of
this nature be limited to certain ancient pastimes (such as maypole dancing) or for
organised sports or communal activities to have taken place; solitary and informal kinds
of recreation are equally as valid.

26.In this case, the evidence demonstrates that a range of recreational activities have
taken place on the land, including blackberrying, dog-walking, nature-watching and
photography. The table summarising evidence of use by local residents at Appendix C
shows the full range of activities claimed to have taken place. This test is therefore
satisfied.

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, neighbourhood or a neighbourhood within a locality?

27.The definition of locality for the purposes of a village green application has been the
subject of much debate in the courts and there is still no definite rule to be applied. In
the Cheltenham Builders? case, it was considered that *...at the very least, Parliament
required the users of the land to be the inhabitants of somewhere that could sensibly be
described as a locality... there has to be, in my judgement, a sufficiently cohesive entity
which is capable of definition’. The judge later went on to suggest that this might mean
that locality should normally constitute ‘some legally recognised administrative division
of the county’'.

28.At Part 4 of the application form, the applicant identifies the locality as being the parish
of Wittersham. The applicant describes in her witness statement the facilities available
in the local area, which include a Church of England Primary School, a Parish Council, a
Village Hall, a Church, a sports club and a number of social groups (e.g. Toddlers,
Brownies and WI). All of these facilities are reminiscent of the sort of ‘cohesive entity’
described in the Cheltenham Builders case. Furthermore, it is clear from plotting the
addresses of those having provided user evidence onto a map (see Appendix F) that all
reside within the administrative parish of Wittersham, which provides a clearly defined
and legally recognised locality. The test in relation to locality is therefore satisfied.

’R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council (2003)

Page 5



29.1n terms of the ‘significant number’ issue, this was considered in the McAlpine Homes®

case, in which it was held that significant did not necessarily mean considerable or
substantial: Sullivan J stated that what matters is that the number of users has to be
sufficient enough to indicate that ‘their use of the land signifies that it is in general use
by the local community for informal recreation, rather than occasional use by individuals
as trespassers’.

30.0ne of the main criticisms of the application from the objectors is that the application

31.

site has not been in frequent use by the local residents. One objector states “from my
observations, its present use is almost nil. | pass it most days with my dog and have
never seen a soul on it’, whilst another adds “the Parish Council developed a Parish
Plan in 1998 in which it stated that Coronation Field was largely underused, re-
emphasising the point that the field was not used by a significant number of people,
even then. It is even less used at the present time”.

The applicant’s evidence is that the application site has been in regular usage for
informal recreation by the local community and this view is supported by several
witnesses living close by. One of those (who lives opposite the application site) states
‘we have observed... that other villagers have used the field and the Village Green on a
daily basis for such activities as dog walking, ball games, including golf practice...
occasionally, we have seen the field being used for organised games for local clubs, in
particular the Brownies and the Youth Club’.

32.Some of the objectors have attempted to quantify this use in percentage terms (i.e. as

percentage proportion of the total population of the village who use the land). For the
reasons set out in the McAlpine Homes case (see paragraph 29 above) this is not the
correct approach. Instead, it is necessary to consider how the situation would have
appeared to a reasonable landowner.

33.1t is clear from the Parish Plan referred to by one of the objectors that the Parish Council

were aware in 1998 (during the material period) that the land was being used, albeit that
it was largely underused. The Parish Council had the opportunity at that time to assert
its right as landowner and to challenge the local inhabitants’ use of the land. For
reasons which will become clearer later in this report, they did not; but this does not
mean that use was not by a ‘significant’ number of local inhabitants within the meaning
of the 1965 Act and, despite the volume of objections received asserting the land is little
used, it is difficult to ignore the not insignificant amount of user evidence (some of which
refers to use on a daily basis) produced in support of the application. Once again, the
test to be applied here is a more qualitative rather than quantitative one.

(d) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

34.In order to qualify for registration, it must be shown that the land in question has been

used for a full period of twenty years up until the date of application. In this case, since
the application was submitted in 2006, the requisite twenty-year period is 1986 to 2006
(“the material period”).

R (Alfred McAlpine Homes Ltd.) v Staffordshire County Council (2002)

Page 6



35.From the user evidence submitted, there appears to have been use of the land over a
considerable period. Of the 49 withesses who have provided user evidence, 17 have
used the land during the whole of the material period, with some having used the land
far beyond the start of the material period in 1986. There is no evidence to suggest that
such use has ever been interrupted for any significant period.

36.The ‘usergram’ at Appendix G clearly illustrates that use has taken place over a
continuous period of at least twenty years and as such | am satisfied that this test has
been met.

(e) Whether use of the land by the inhabitants is continuing up until the date of
application?

37.The application in this case is dated 12t September 2006. There is no evidence to
suggest that the application has been submitted in response to actions taken to prohibit
or restrict use of the land by local residents (for example, the erection of a notice or
physical barrier). Therefore, it can be concluded that the use of the land by the local
inhabitants did continue up until the date of application.

Counsel’s advice

38.Due to the complex and emotive nature of the application, Counsel’s advice on the
matter has been sought. Counsel expressed a serious concern regarding whether the
use of the land was capable of being ‘as of right’. This concern was in response to a
copy of byelaws relating to the application site that had been provided by an objector
during the consultation process.

39.The existence of byelaws is not a fact which, itself, automatically disqualifies land from
becoming registrable as a Village Green. In fact, the applicant has questioned the
validity of the particular byelaws in relation to the application site by virtue of the fact that
they have not been prominently displayed or placed on deposit with the local Borough
Council. However, such debates are largely irrelevant and indeed the byelaws
themselves are, in many ways, a ‘red herring’ since the significance of the existence of
byelaws lies not in their content, but rather in the particular legislative provision under
which they were made and under which the Parish Council acquired (and now holds)
the land in question.

40.In this case, the byelaws were made in 1979 ‘under section 164 of the Public Health Act
1875... with respect to a pleasure ground and a recreation ground... [being] the Village
Green and the Recreation Ground known as Coronation Playing Field, Wittersham.'.
They were confirmed by the Secretary of State in July 1979 and took effect on 1%
August 1979.

41.Section 164 of the 1875 Act provides that ‘any urban authority may purchase or take on
lease lay out plant improve and maintain lands for the purpose of being used as public
walks or pleasure grounds...". The fact that the byelaws were made under this section of
the 1875 Act suggests that the application site may have been a purchased (or
‘appropriated’) under the 1875 Act, the effect of which (as explained at paragraph 24
above) would be to render use of the land ‘by right and not ‘as of right’, since

Page 7



appropriated land would have been entrusted in the local authority and held for the
specific purpose of ‘public walks or pleasure grounds’.

42.In the case of the application site at Wittersham, it has not been possible to trace any
formal deed of appropriation under the 1875 Act. The original conveyance provided for
the land to be conveyed to the Parish Council ‘to hold... as a space for the benefit of the
Parish of Wittersham’ but did not state the legislative provision under which the Parish
Council acquired the land. However, Counsel was of the view that the decision in the
Poole? case supported the notion that an acquisition of land by a public authority can be
inferred to have been made in exercise of powers under various Acts (including the
Public Health Act 1875) despite the absence of any direct documentary evidence to that
effect.

43.The question which then arises (in the absence of a formal deed of appropriation under
the 1875 Act) is what evidence is available regarding the circumstances of the
acquisition of the land and, more importantly, the statutory power under which the
Parish Council was acting when it acquired the land. It is clear from the original 1954
Conveyance that the intention was for the land to be dedicated to the local inhabitants
for recreation purposes and both the applicant and various objectors make reference to
the fact that the land was purchased by a local person for the benefit of the village. The
unqualified use of the word ‘space’ in the Conveyance is unhelpful but, considering the
context as a whole, it could feasibly be inferred that ‘space’ was intended as a reference
to ‘public’ or ‘open’ space, otherwise the Conveyance would have been pointless. This
proposition is supported by the fact that there is no evidence to suggest that, during the
material period, the Parish Council has ever sought to restrict the recreational use® of
the land and has not conducted its management of the land in a manner which would be
inconsistent with its acquisition as a recreational space for the inhabitants of the village
(for example, by restricting or impeding access).

44.Having concluded, on a balance of probabilities, that the land was held under a statutory
trust for public recreation (i.e. s164 of the 1875 Act), Counsel went on to consider the
effect of this on the ‘as of right’ usage of the land. This issue arose in a House of Lords
case known as Beresford®, in which Lord Walker said “where land is vested in a local
authority on a statutory trust under section 10 of the Open Spaces Act 1906, inhabitants
of the locality are beneficiaries of a statutory trust of a public nature, and it would be
very difficult to regard those who use the park or other open space as trespassers... the
position would be the same if there were no statutory trust in the strictest sense, but
land had been appropriated for the purpose of public recreation”.

45.The fundamental principle behind ‘as of right’ concept is the fact that, in order to acquire
rights, those using the land must start off as trespassers. The acquisition of rights
cannot occur if those using the land for recreational purposes already have a right to do
so. If land is held by a local authority for recreational purposes then those using the land
are not trespassers; they are already there ‘by right’. For this reason, Counsel was of
the view that the application site was not capable of registration as a Village Green.

4 Attorney-General v Poole Corporation (1937)

® Reference was made in paragraph 10 to applications for planning permission to construct a new Village Hall
on the application site in 2006, but this was outside the material 20 year period and arguably may not have
been inconsistent with the use of the land as a ‘space’ for the village.

6 R(Beresford) v Sunderland City Council (2004)

Page 8



46.Regulation 6(3) of the Commons Registration (New Land) Regulations 1969 states: ‘the
registration authority... shall not reject the application without giving the applicant a
reasonable opportunity of dealing with the matters contained in the statements of
[objection] and with any other matter in relation to the application which appears to the
authority to afford prima facie grounds for rejecting the application’. As such, Counsel
advised that, before making a recommendation to the Regulation Committee Member
Panel, it would be appropriate to write to the applicant informing her that there may be
possible grounds for recommending to the Member Panel that the application should be
rejected, and providing an opportunity for the applicant to respond accordingly. A copy
of this letter (“the regulation six letter”) is attached at Appendix H for reference.

Applicant’s response

47.A copy of the applicant’s response is attached at Appendix . For ease of reference, the
main points are summarised below:

e The Local Government Act 1972 requires byelaws to be available for public
inspection at the offices of the authority by whom the byelaws are made. Neither the
Parish Council nor the Ashford Borough Council hold any byelaws in relation to the
land and this raises a serious question as to the validity of the byelaws.

e |t is accepted that the Parish Council does hold the land in trust (statutory or
charitable) to be kept as an open space for the benefit of the Parish but there is little
to distinguish the present case with other similar Village Green applications at South
Road Recreation Ground at Hythe [which was referred to a Public Inquiry] and
Heartenoak Playing Fields at Hawkhurst [which was registered as a Village Green]
and consistency of approach should be applied.

48.In response to the applicant’s latter comments it should be noted that each Village
Green application is unique and is dealt with upon the facts of each individual case. In
the Hythe case, there was no evidence initially to support the contention by the
landowner that the land was held under a public statutory trust and there was a serious
question regarding continuity of use, hence the need for a Public Inquiry to test the
evidence. In the Hawkhurst case, although the land was owned by the Parish Council,
there were no known byelaws and the issue of appropriation simply did not arise: the
County Council has no investigative duty and can only take decisions in Village Green
matters based on the evidence presented to it by the relevant parties.

49.With regard to the former comments, there was obviously some belief at the time that
the byelaws were made (in 1979) that the land was held under a public statutory trust for
the powers under section 164 of the 1875 Act to be used; it is unlikely that the byelaws
would have been confirmed by the Secretary of State had the Parish Council not had
the power to make them in the first place. Whether or not the correct procedures were
followed subsequent to the confirmation of the byelaws is an entirely separate question
and not one which is directly relevant to the Village Green application.

Conclusion
50.From the evidence submitted, it is clear that the residents of the locality of Wittersham

have enjoyed the land for recreational purposes over a period of time far in excess of
the requisite 20 years without any form of challenge from the Parish Council (as

Page 9



landowner). There appears to be, from the user evidence submitted in support of the
application and the letters received from objectors, some conflict as to the extent of the
usage of the land (the ‘significant number’ issue discussed at paragraph 30 above). This
is essentially a question of fact and degree that is difficult to resolve on paper and may
benefit from further examination in a public forum.

51.However, there is one issue, it would appear, that presents a ‘knock-out blow’ for the
application and which cannot be overcome: the question of the public statutory trust
under which the application site is considered to be held. Despite the lack of a formal
Deed of Appropriation, the existence of the byelaws made under section 164 of the
Public Health Act 1875 and the manner in which the Parish Council has acquired and
managed the land, provides a persuasive argument in favour of the land being held
under the 1875 Act. In the absence of any strong evidence to the contrary, it has to be
assumed that the land is held under the 1875 Act and, therefore, that use of the land is
‘by right’ and not ‘as of right’.

52.From close consideration of the evidence submitted, | have therefore concluded that the
legal tests concerning the registration of the land as a Village Green (as set out above)
have not been met.

Recommendations
53.1 recommend that the County Council informs the applicant that the application to

register the land known as ‘Coronation Field’ and ‘the Village Green’ at Wittersham has
not been accepted.

Accountable Officer:

Dr. Linda Davies — Tel: 01622 221500 or Email: linda.davies@kent.gov.uk

Case Officer:

Miss. Melanie McNeir — Tel: 01622 221511 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk

The main file is available for viewing on request at the Countryside Access Service,
Environment and Waste Division, House, County Hall, Maidstone. Please contact the case
officer for further details.

Background documents

APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site

APPENDIX B — Copy of application form

APPENDIX C — Table summarising user evidence

APPENDIX D — Summary of letters of objection

APPENDIX E — Copy of byelaws relating to application site
APPENDIX F — Plan showing the relevant locality

APPENDIX G — Usergram showing period of use

APPENDIX H — Copy of the “regulation six” letter sent to the applicant
APPENDIX | — Applicant’s response to “regulation six” letter

Page 10




589900 "

§90000 <=2 590100 55X

APPENDIX A:
Plan showing application site
(land known as ‘The Village Green’
: and Coronation Field at Wittersham)
S
(=
W
[
g -
N N
g | 5
=4 (4
Y o
¢ g
£ °
2 [ =}
8 -
5 o
N e
& 8
S P , ?:
g éproduced by pemy'séion of Ordnance Sulvay & Bahalt of HMSO. @ Grown copyright April 2006. All fights resefve nce number 100019239. 2008 §
: ‘ % ORI | S
589900 °°7 590009 0230 590100 22 590200 %% 590300 2220 -
N
w E Land subject to village
green application
at Wittersham /
S

Scale 1:2500

Page 11




CR FORM 30

Official stamg
indicating dat

APPENDIX B:

COMBONS REGISTRA
KENT COURTY |
REGISTRATION A

18 SEP 20un

Copyofappﬁcaﬁonfonn_

VG

This section for official
use only

Uinsert name of
registration authority

~ To the !

COMMONS REGISTRATION ACT 1965 SECTION 13

APPLICATION FOR THE REGISTRATION OF LAND
WHICH BECAME A TOWN OR VILLAGE GREEN
AFTER 2"” JANUARY 1970

1

KENT COUNTY CouNCiL
Application is hereby made for the registration as a town or
village green of the land described below, which became so
registrable after 2 January 1970.

Part 1

(Give Christian names

or forenames and surname

or, in the case of a body corporate
or unincorporate, the full title of the
body. If part 2 is not completed all
correspondence and notices will be
sent to the first named applicant).

Name and address of the applicant or (if more than one)
of every applicant '

MIRIAM ANGELA LEWIS
MibLik Housk
WITTERSHAM
TENTERDEN

KENT '

TNBO FET

Part 2

(This part should be

completed only if a solicitor

has been instructed for the

purposes of the application.

If it is completed, all correspondence
and notices will be sent to the
solicitor)

Name and address of solicitor, if any.

MR. ALASTAIR WALLACE
PUBLIC LAW SELICITORS
KING EDWARD C(HAMBERS
|bbs ALCESTER ROAD
MOSELEY
RIRMINGHAM
B13 IHS

Page 12




Part 3 Particulars of the land to be registered, i.e. the land claimed
to have become a town or village green

Name by which usually known )
CORONATION FIELD AND ViLLAGE GREEN

Localit
e YPARlSH GF WITTERSHAM  KENT

Colour on plan herewith |

REO

Part 4 On what date did the land become a town or village green?

e -
15T AUGUST 2006

Part 5 How did the land become a town or village green?

PLEASE SEE ATTACHEC SHEET

Part 6 Name and address of every person whom the applicant
believes to be an owner, leasee, tenant or occupier of any part
of the land claimed to have become a town or village green
(if none are known, write 'none’)

WITTERSHAM [PARISH CounNciL
MRS. Y. OSBORNE | LLERK

13 HiLLTorP DRIVE

PLAYOEN, RYE

EAST Sussex ,TN31 FRT

Part 7 ‘ For applications to register substituted land (see Note 5); to
' be disregarded in other cases.

Particulars of the "taken land" i.e. the land which ceased to
be a town or village green (or part thereof) when the land
described in part 3 became a town or village green (or part)
Name by which usually known

Locality N / A

Colour on plan herewith (if any)

[f registered under the 1965 Act, register unit No(s)

Page 13




Part 8

List of supporting documents sent herewith, if any. (If none
are sent, write "none")

NONE

Part 9

If there are any othér facts relating to the application which
ought to be brought,to the attention of the registration
authority (in particu\lar if any person interested in the land is
believed to dispute the claim that it has become a town or
village green) full particulars should be given here.
(Continue on the back if necessary) ' :

PLEASE REFER To WITNESS STATEMENT
OF MIRIAM LEWIS

*[f the application must be signed Date ............L. SO BN O R T PR e

by or on behalf of each individual

! 4
' !\w.! .f"ff\.- i ;
applicant, and by the secretary or some  Signatures ® ..... b B AAD e e

other duly authorised officer of any

applicant which is a body corporate e

or unincorporate

........................................................

Page 14




(See Note 9) STATUTORY DECLARATION IN SUPPORT

To be made by the applicant, or by one of the applicants, or
by his or their solicitor, or, if the applicant is a body
corporate or unincorporate, by its solicitor or by the person
who signed the application.

'Insert full name (and L' MIRIAM ANGELA LEWIS
address if not given in solemnly and sincerely declare as follows;-
the application form)

’Delete and adapt as

necessary

signed the foregoing application) (the-selk
(the-applieant)-Cone-of the-applicants)]

2. Thave read the Notes to the application form.

Y Insert name if applicable 12 Tam [(the person (ene-efthepersons) who (has) (have)
d |

3. The facts set out in the application form are to the best of
my knowledge and belief fully and truly stated and I am not
aware of any other fact which should be brought to the
attention of the registration authority as likely to affect its
decision on this application, not of any document relating to
the matter other than those (if any) mentioned in parts 8 and
9 of the application.

A

Insert "marking” as on plan 4. The plan now produced and shown to me marked* {¥la
: is the plan referred to in Part 3 of the application.

"Delete this paragraph o 55 Theplannow produced-and shown to-me-marked’
if there is no plan } ] is-the- planreferred-to-inPart F-of-the-apphication.

referred to in Part 7 .

And I make this solemn declaration, conscientiously
believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the Statutory

Declarations Act 1835. :

.......................................

................................................................

i 29 Mgk Sheat, ‘7@«/@5{@@) | \M A L&wfiﬂ_

.............................................................

o | ° . Signature of Declarant
in the @quuﬁ/ of/W ............. )

.....................

T Mrdon

..........................

Y Tuze i BT

..............................

............................................

REMINDER TO OFFICER TAKING DECLARATION: :
Please initial all alterations and mark any plan as an exhibit

Raapo 15
ragc—o




Part s

Additional Statement

The inhabitants of the parish of Wittersham have indulged in the various activities described below,
as of right, for over 20 years as at 1 August 2006, and many of these continue to this day.

The activities which have taken place over the 20 year period include:

The throwing and kicking of balls
Walking

Running

Jumping

Keep-fit exercises

Basketball

Cricket

Footbali

Dog walking and exercising

Kite flying

Blackberry picking

Tobogganing _
Snowballing and making snowmen
Operating remote control cars
Gymnastics

Use of swings, slide and climbing frame
Informal socialising

Picnics

Needlework

Wildlife observation and study
Frisbee playing

Operating model aeroplanes
Golf practice

Brownie and youth club events
Gardening

Reading

Tennis

Apple picking

Informal parties

These activities have taken place in various locations on Coronation Field and Village Green over
the past 20 years, as described in the attached witness statements. Individual pastimes have taken
place on particular parts of the land, and taken together have covered the whole area.

All these activities have taken place without asking permission, predominantly in daylight, without
any objection or challenge from the landowner or anyone else. The landowner is fully aware of the
use of the land, and entry takes place through recognised unlocked access points.

This application relates to usage over the 20 years up to 1 August 2006, but there is evidence of a
similar pattern of use dating from around 1954, when a local benefactor paid for the acquisition of

the land as “space™ for the village.

Page 16




= Ordnance.
dSurvey®

~ Siteplan® 1:2500

The land bordered in red is the land known as the Village Green and Coronation Field.

g
e

o
R s e T
e o)

gﬁmw falieps
H s

Produced 28 Apr2006 from Ordnince Survey digits! P B0 30 & % 10 15
data snd Inooxporeting Surveyed (evision - P —i ; ¢ i
svalable st thisdate.  © Crown Copyright 2006, Mavres
Raproduction in wholt or in part |s prohibited )
W;mmmm%o@suw_ Contre Coordinates: 890140 127267
Ordnance Survy and the DS symbol a7e registerad Nstonal Grd shest reforence ai contre
gafgamm@gbaam;rm@f ': of thés Siteplan; TQROZZ

nance Suvey, the mtional mapping agency o Suppliod by - Esting Publications
Groat Bifsin Seral Numbec: 00138100

/
wf e ‘ . L N
/[ug (3 ’/’(--Q AP VY /1{/{_0(.75’
I Aliriocme A

ST

. ¢
o d o KGiaiS A s e d e il
i = Al o S Con bis for ROOE

)4Paée V;/Lsi S /z M{//ﬁ?/j{/ gf\}-é/(, (‘1{?,/‘(;{/5 Fin

by ANl A S |

.7 ’ 4 4 "/:'/ /4;?/
& @golinel Lo joreetd st




93!

! |..h.i -
PN

/ ‘.-0 Vuv .
. ] . / YN0y hm
1. T J : _5
P KN L oEd mﬁ..
* : s ' =i
i ] ) Y T L
e i
P / L -
f b N 4 R wey i
o) e P oL e A
; § FHb A S 7] : i
IS[MEdY 3 pute o 13 £
A N P o | : o
- i > N [
- o 2 5
rt i

—

) )

e

\ ap_nuﬁﬂw

1/ L
oAk
QRN s:_..—.—_n_ﬂm ...\ "

\
a
ﬂ..j!,,?J Ay

T o~ Pod I UMOYS
Alepunog 4s

Page 18

7 dd
.“//f TH U e g
\ ’ &

LIeJ WeysIaIA
ccon

St

o ] LA I

i




APPENDIX C

Table summarising user evidence

£00¢
Bupjrem BoQ - 0002 4390 | yius D IN
& £002 - weyels)
PoElS JON — 2002 43N 'V "SSIN
£/9961 — 096} Jawuwns uj sAep Jsoul 9002
Buunp jood Buipped susipyo pasn — LG61 43N o "A "SIN
1002 .
bupjlem Bog ~ 2661 43N P10 "9 "IN
(eus Buuolpe) (+002 2002
abeig MOIAIIH JO JoUMQ PuE g661 udamiaq Ajrep) Bunjem Boq ~ 2661 43n piod “Q S
buiALiegoeq
‘Buisiienos uawdinbo Agd
asn o} uaipjiyopueib Bupje) ¢ sAeidsip 9002
Yiomaay ‘(Bop noyum pue yim) Busiies — 9661 43an | eifeg d "sin
Bulluagyoeq ‘Buisiercos quswdinbs
Aeid asn 0} uaupyopueib Bue) 2002
‘sAeidsip Miomaay ‘Buiyorem ainjen — 9661 <3N albeg r "IN
"SIy} 104 uoissiwed s oU0AUR YSE 10U pIp — JajS]
s1 afeulRIp aJaym PISi4 UORRUOIOD) UO UIR} 0] Wea) :
$.6N 1uas 0s pabbouarem aiem sayond umo ‘00z 10 (Ajreuoiseo00) 2002
Jsjuim Buung “qnd ([qlo0- WEYSIDRIM JO UBULIRYD Buriem Bop ‘Buisijeloos ‘(legioo- — 6661 Jan | uelog ™ N
ybnos uoissiuuad
OU pue pajuaaald 1aAsu $$920Y "BulAagyor|q
s|doad pue (sswefl pue Buis|RIZ0S) UDIP|IYD 9002
‘sioyjem Bop Jayio AQ pue| JO 8Sh POSSOUNM SBH ‘Buistoisxe pue Bupjem Boq - 0661 1St qretn D 'sIN
9002
Bupjiem Bog ~ 9661 J3n | ariDa N
Aeid 0} alay)
ualp(iyo dnoibAeid Buney ‘Bunyem Bop
‘aleyy uswdinba Aeid asn oy Jsjybnep 2002
Bunye; ‘piys e se Buikeld pue Buidwen —1/61 49N | voxng I S
(so861
aouis Apoam) Aeid jeieusd ‘eaqsily 2661
‘Ireqioo} (946 + dous Aiep) Bunjem BoQ - 9/61 43N | welig oy IN
"$0lu0Id U0} posn os|y eale Aeld e se 900¢ umo.lg
ApeinBai ays ayy pasn JabunoA sem teybnep usym sawef Buikeid ‘Builuagioelq ‘Bunjep -~ 9661 43n "SI pue "Iy
vasn | ,aouapine
SIUAWIWOD JAYIO pue] U0 U RUSPUN SIANDY jo sajeq | Jo yewsog SWeN

Page 19



Buisienos
‘Builiegyoelq ‘Buihl} oy ‘seiued

aumalq ‘Buyoyem sinjeu ‘souoid 9661
‘('eGIO0} JRULIOW ‘UBIPIIYO Yum Buikely — 1161 43N | epesiN Y "SI
Buiyorem aunjeu ‘Buifiiagyoelq
(gnpo ynoA pue saiumolq -H:9) sanio [eoo] Aq seweb ‘saue)doise |opou ‘seeqgsild ‘ssweb
pasiuefiio 10} 8sNn [euCISE20 Buipnoul ‘saiAgoe (leq ‘Buidyy a1 ‘Buisieroos ‘Burxelal 9002
O JOQUINU B POAIDSJO SBY puR puej 0} Jusdelpe SeArn ‘Bupjiem ‘eate Aeid pasn usipiyd - 861 1S uoA1d IN
A Buiyoiem sinjeu BuiAuagioe|q 9002
‘Buidyy a3 ‘Bupjiem ‘usippyo yum Buikeld - 861 43N | U0AT H "SI
"0}0 DUISIBI00S DUIUDIEM 2INjeu ‘Mous
siabeusa) ‘Buileld uaipyyo ‘seweb |eq jeuloul ul Buikeld ‘Buifiiagyoelq ‘Buisielnos
‘Bupjrem-Hop Buipnious ‘siseq (Allep ose2 awWos ‘(synpe pue usipjyo) saweb ||eqiooy
u) Jenbal e uo aoeid Bupie) seAgoe AuBll paAIasqo jewoyul ‘sojuoid ‘Buipesal ‘Bunjem
SBH "Pl8id UOHBUOIOY JO M3IA pajdnusiulun pue Jes|d ‘(oagsu) yum 69} Bulkeld [eioush 2002
B peY ‘6661 D2UIS ‘SBY PUB 21 8y} 0} Juadelpe $aAI ‘wswdinba uo Aeid 0} usipiyo Bupe | - GB6 1S | sma "IN SIN
S1e0 |0U0D Flowal yum bulAed
‘reqiiseq ‘BuiklagioE(q ‘SeiAnoe 1002
mous ‘Buihly a1y 193010 ‘|reqioo ~ G661 43N | swe1-a N
(9002 — 8661) buibbol
‘Bulkiiegyoe|q (0961 — #S61) 100d 9002
Buipped pasn pue usipjiyd Yum paleld ~ 561 d4an | Aes1 -3 sIn
puNOC JESA ||B ||eqiO0} [Bluoul
pue G661 01 9861 Slewwns inoybnoiyl Apjaem G661
anio YINoA Asuxo jo 38| yum saweb paieid osiy ualpliyopuesd ypum souoid Jewwng —8/61 44N Bun "N SN
BUIALISGXOBIQ G661
‘Buisijeroos ‘souoid ‘Bupjiem 6oq — 8.6l 43N Bury M JN
(Alreuoiseoo0) buisijeinos *(A|[eucisesao) 1002
Buibbol ‘(Arep) Buniem Bog - 9661 43N | UddIM "V "IN
UaIpjiyd yim 9002
Buiked‘souoid ‘(Auenbos) Bupjiem Bog - 0002 1S | Avyer s an
L00<C
Buiyoyem ainteu ‘BuiAuagyoelg — /661 43n WNH TN
Buisijeloos 200¢ BulpiH
‘leqioo} ‘puncibAeld s,ualpliyo Jo asn — G661 43N "SI pUB "IN
£002 AemeuieH
pajels JoN — G661 43N Y SIN
o991
900¢ VSN +
(Aiyguowr) Bupjiem — 2002 43n | Buipiey g N

Page 20



900¢ piaydsys
PBIJELS 0N — 9861 43N D SIN
_ 900¢ [le@ssny
Buiduagsioelq ‘usipiiyo yum Buikeld =002 d43n 'S "SIN
punjjem £002
Bop qubiu anjuoqg ‘wswdinbe Agid Buisn - 6861 43N | steny r USSIN
£002
8S1049Xa ‘|[eq)o0} [euLoul ‘BuIsleInog - 9/61 43n slany I
(Apjoam) Aejd o} usIp)iyo 2002
umo Bupfe} uay} ‘pliyo e se Buike)d - SQ96 L 43N | sisnly P siy
Bursifeloos ‘jjegiaseq 002 lafned
Buiferd quawdinbe Aeid Buisn ~ 861 440N "3 "SSIN
{s0661 BULINP) BuIS|BID0S 10 PUE| pasn
Jeyybnep umo "jood Buipped ur Buikerd
pue wawdinba Aeid Buisn pue (S0961L 9002 Jajned
Buunp) piyo & se spusuy yum Buiked — 85961 1S "H "SIN
2002 JEEILTER
asiloxa ‘Bupjiepm - 8661 43N TSI
"DUISI|BID0S IO} 2I0W
pasn aq 0} Spual usalL) abe||ip SBalaym 3SI0IoXD
pue suods [eulour 10} symnoA abea Aq Apejnbal
pasn p[ald uoneuoio "0je Bulluiagorlq ‘Buid))
-aly ‘Bupjiem "B-o ‘ous uoneoydde ay) jo asn umo Jo
2s1n09 ay) Buunp ssiuAoe Jo affuel B paAIasqgo os|e
SBH “99140 00|} 1511} WOJ} PI9l4 UONRUOoIOD JO JlBy 9002 layelAiuusy
INOQE JO MSIA JBDIO SBY PUR 3)IS Y} 0] 1uadelpe SaAlr Bunjpep - G661 18 ‘a N
2002
Pa1els JON — 6.6l 43n |  sbed ‘WA
bupjiem “(sAepioy
pue spuayeom) saweb |eq (a1ay) sem 2002
1 uaym Aep Aioas) wswdinba Aeid Buisn - 6461 44N S| "N “SIN
buisyenos ‘souod ‘uswdinbs Aeid 0002
Buisn ‘[reqievseq pue jegioo) Buikeld — £861 430 SHIN "9 "IN
82140 awdopaa(] [Biny au)
wioy Juelb e Bumo)|o) €661 Aepy ul psuado Ajeioio SISBq APjoom B Uo S0661
sem Juawidinbe Aeid sy swil ay) Je Dd 033910 SeAr | qnio yIncA yum Buidiay uaym yoeos e sy Aleq 43N | 8o "W SIA
(Alenbasibuisieoos
‘(AenBau) Bupjem Bop ‘(Ajeuoisesso)
soiwoid “(A|jeuoise00) feqieNseq 9661
‘(Aifeuoise000) usipiiyd yum Huikeld ~ /161 43N | spesiy "D N

Page 21



"olep SIyl u:o>mo_ Bumunuoo sq 0} Ajay)| s1 esn ‘seseo Auew ) :paiajdwod
SEM LUIO} SOUBPIAS J9SN B} YOIUM Ul me> oy} 0} @duaIsjal B Ajelaush sI siyl ‘2002 10 900z [un aoe|d Yoo} 8sn 1.4} Pa1BIS SI 1 AISU My

(1S) auswerels, 10 (43N) W0 SOUSPIAZ JOS, JOYND SI SOUSPIAS JO JeLLIO,

6661 U
panowal aiom sbums -Buield [essuab pue [eqioo; (sog6 1 Buunp) 9002
[euuojul 1o) puel Buisn usipjiuo 19430 LSS seH swdinbs Aeid asn 0y uaipyo Buye —8/61 1S nedpn 0 N
Wwawdinbs Aed Buisn 2002 TSTETYY
‘Buiknagyoeq ‘reqiooy ‘Bunijem ‘Buibbop — 6861 43N "V "SSIN
DulALBagyoe|q
10} pue (s1epunoi jo saweb  6-9) seiumoiq UoIBM
uum Buidjsy usym pue| pasn aaey sisbneq Jawdinba Aejd asn 0y uaipjiyo yooyl | peies 10N 43N W TSI
2002
pajels JON - €002 EEIR 1eLAL "d "IN
"POX00] Udaq :
Jonsu aney sseook Bulpinoid sajer) Buiiagyoelg
‘Butkeld usipyyo ‘Bunjiem Bop "6s — siseq Jenba)
B U0 p|ay sy} uo soeld Bupfel samagoe Jo Joguinu 9002
B POAISS(O SkY PUB a)s uoliesidde SHO0ISA0 8SNOH - 2002 1S | sewoyl g IN
aoeds G661
uado Buikolus ‘swdinbe Aeyd Buisny - 2961 43N | uonns r sy
2002
Poiels I0N - 0961 43N BUOIS " "IN

Page 22



APPENDIX D

d

10N receive

Summary of letters of object

"Suiedioo} [ed0] j0 310Mm}aul obIe| B BIA S| UOIUM O} SS9008 ‘abe|jin IBUSISNIM

ut soeds uado oliqnd Jeuyio Jo abierioys ou s1 esay ) passisiBas Butag jou pue| syl 1o ANUNWWOD JopiMm

B} 0} Jj2USq DI0W S| BIBYY — PUB| S} JO SN 8NNy 8U} SUILLISISP O} SIaqUIBL Pa1a3|d Jo B ay} Aeme
@B} pinom snjels usalx) abe||iA “JauMOpUE] 8u} Jo uoisstulad Ul Yum SI 9SN 1042194} ‘P91 UOIJEUOIOD UO
uareHapun aq Afngme; Biw yoium sanialoe sfeinBal Yoiym soud)sixe Ul smejeAq a2 s1ay ] -pue| ayy Buisn
AlreinBoa1 sjuspisal [200] JO s1eqUINU WEDIIUBIS PAAIISAO JOU SARY duIl ey BuLInp pue sIesk usass 1o}
abej|ia su} Ul panl| eaeH “suods pesiueBio Joj Wwepunpa) AjeBie; swooaq SeY plel4 UCHBUOIOD /961 S0UIS

L0/L0/LE

“AJljE00] BjelpaliL] Sy} WOo.) Siax[Em Dop

[BUCISED00 BWOS WOJ) Hede alel §1 pjal4 UCBUOIOY) JO 8s "asn Juanbayy Ul §1 pue 215y} PSIONASU0D SBM
eale Aejd abie| e Apusnbasqns ‘usa.x) sbe|Ip e se palasiBal sem pue| paumo [ouncn ydnolog jo eale ue
‘obe sigak G| Inoqy "pley SIYl uo saRiAde Pasiuebio Jo Jeinbal AUe USaq Jou aABY 88U} 0261 INOqe aouIg
‘Pomo|[e Iounog ysiied ayl yodlym sjuaas abejlia Jay1o [BuoISLoo0 pue plal} [[eq1o0) aBe|iA e Se sieah moy e
10} pasn sem pue] ay} ‘aseyoind sy} o)y "0} paliejal Ajasel alem Ing aseyoind ay) Jeye uoos ssn s)l 0) se
louno yslied ayl Aq passed aiom smepAg 1ounod ysled ay) Ag aseyoind s 8oUIS pUe| Sy} UMOUY dABH

L0/20/61

[l0MBD "1 "SI pue *SIpy

ssabing ‘N 1D

‘prey aul buidoaasp ul sbea ayi asijeusd pinom

aimnj ayy Ul yoiym Juswdolsasp Aue dojs o1 Ajgeqoud s uoneaidde ay) Jo) UoSES. UIBW S| “MBIA
PUE|pooAA 03 pajedolad Sem pialy auy) ul aq 0} pasn yaiym uswdinbs Aeid ay) "peos Asng ay; 01 snp
Ajiesauab pasn o) Ausa s1 ) @ouUsNadXS UMO WOLY pUe Sieak 0/ JoAo Jo) abe||IA ay) Ul panl| seH "spods
4ons sjeyj|ioe) 0] [ews 00} S )1 se 19)010 Jo [jeqioo) Buikeld 1oy pesn usaq Joasu sey plal4 UoHeUoI0N

£0/£0/S0

A30INg 'Y I

“urewal 0] smejaAq arenbape Afjdopad s) Yiim pleld UoHeuoion

Jusoelpe ay; aAeS| pue usain) abeiA e sk uspieb felowsw sy} Jo1siBal 0} S|qRUOSESI Waas PINoM J|
, ‘Aoadip ajum

0} 9|qBUN B.Je OYM BSOU} WOl uoNalgo Jo SIaNS| prepuels pue (saineubis g6 Buiurejuos) uoad e Buisojous Jenen
Irey abe(a mau e 1o) pue| sy} jo ed e Buisiin jo Aujiqissod aining sy pue

Ajunuwwios ay} jo 1yauaq U} 0} PISI4 UOIIBUCIOD) JO [0IL0Y UIBJA) PINOYS [I0UNOY) USHEd 8y ‘Spasu [[e JoJ JaJed Jou
$o0p pue sienbapeul pue pjo s |fey abe||ia Jusseld djoym e se abefjia sU} Jo Jyeusqg 8y} 4oy Jou st uoneoydde ay |

£0/80/80

LO/L0/LL

L0/L0/EL

Joyor.g "IN "SIN

“Punod Usied auyl Yim wews)
0} diysioumo U} Jo} SJUBHGRUUI WRYSISNIAA JO SISaI8)U] 1Saq Yl Ul 8 pinom J| ‘sasodind aininy renusiod Joyjo
Jo} @sn jusaald pinom usalg) abe|liA e se uolensiBay e|doad jo Jaqunu pajwi A1aA B AQ pasn Auo i pial sy

20/L0/81

uosiuuag d "SI

"1ayung pauluexs aq pinoys puk sy} aaaiyoe o) Ajunuoddo poob e aq pinom [jeH abe|ia mau

v "Aofua o} weysiaip Jo sjoym ay} Joj ssn olqnd poob o} ind pjai uojeuolo?) 89S 0} iajeid PINOAA “UU] UBMS By |
Aqg siead Juaoal jeno pasiuelio suoneige|eo aiuog ayl St pial su) 40 asn ayew sisbeya Jo Joquinu 1ealb B usym
Ayaioe Ajuo ay | “ssiialoe abe)(iA JO JequINU B Ul PIAJOALI SUIO0S] SABY PUE $E6 | S0UIS WRBUSISHIA Ul POAI| 9ABH

£0/90/L¢

Hoed "IN "SI pue N

‘pue| jo aoeid Jdweiun ue snl

SBM PUB| 82Ul — SOG6 | SUl Ul sally ma) e alay) Bop payem “soe|d usye) eAey 0] Aj9)|un 18 pauned SOIANOE ay) Jo
swos pue suob vouis Huo| aney sepis pue swel) Buiquio ‘sBuims ay] eoeds [BUOIIESI03! B SB JUBPUNPSI SW098]
sey piel4 uoneuocio) ‘961 Ul Buag ojul 8Weo punolb spods syl 82UIs PUB $GEL SOUIS WBYSINIA Ui POAI| 9ABH

20/40/20

ssaMieq "W "SIN

10} ysim abe||IA 3U} JeUM Si 1eu} J1 11 UO ing [leH abe||IA € aney Aep suo Aew yoiym a0eds & — WeysIalii Jo ojdoad
ay} Jo} doeds  se jdey aq pinoys pue jasse abelA e s1 )| “sjuspisal Buipunolins ay) pue siexem Bop Joy 1dsoxa
pasn ajn Aon s 1l (Allenuso alow sigeprese Buisg puel Jo seale JoUj0 pue) peol uew auy) spisbuole ebe|jia auy

JO pus auo Je uolsod sy 0} ang "weysiel Jo sidoad ay) Joj ededs e SE [IDUNo) siied ayi Aq peseyoind sem puen

L0/L0/L1L

Aaleg " L "sdy pue "

12319] 10 a1eQ

auweN

uonoalqe jo Arewung

Page 23



"218(J) INg Sem [[BY MaU B Jj AUNWwWoD aY) 0} Iisuad Janad el 1o ag pinom 1| — mou puej atj) asn ojdoad Auew 1ey)
aAalaq Jou o "Piel aut uo Bop Bupjiem uosiad auo usos JoAe AjUo aaeY ‘siead Juaoal U] "alay) paAerd si 1930u0 pue
[[BGI00] BU] |[& MOU OS pue £961 U abe|jia ayl ui pauado gnio stods ay| -aAl S1IWE) 1SOLW 3JaUM 0} JOSOJD S| Udiym
MBIA SPUBIPOOAA 18 Jiing sem eale Aejd mau e pue Jredalsip ojul (185 ) INg pue| ay) uo Juawdinbs Aeid aq 01 pasn pig

20/40/70

Buipmoq 'd "SIN

"AUUNWILLIOD [220] BU1 YuMm

ureLual pinoys UoISIoap srewnn auyl pue |y abejjia mau & 10} 2)Is [eusiod e sk pauspl usag Sey pial4 UolieucIoD
‘1OUNoOY) Ysied au} Woly swod pinoys pabueyd pue| ay) Jo sniels au) aAeY 0} aroul Aue — AUNLULIoD ay) Jo 1sassiul
1594 9y} Ul [10UN0Y) Used palos|e Ajjeoieioowsp ay; Aq pabeueww pue paumo si pue| ay] ‘abe|ia a2yl u) seoeds usdo
paureluiew A|oNgnd Japeq Jey ale a1ay) — AlALOR AJIUNWWo JO a11us0 e fem fue Ul US9q 19A8U SBY plald UOHRUOI0D

LO/LOVE

arebuag "y N

"a|doad [e00] Jo Jaquinu juediubis e Aq paiolus Jou fenbal Jayiau

afe paune saADY abeuew 0] IDUNOT) YSUEJ SU} O} o] pUB WeysislIA Jo s|dosd aul o} usalb sem pue| sy
‘sel|lwe) [eoo] AQ pasn Ajpaisusixs si udiym uaaib abe||in paleoo) Ajleausa alow B sey Apesdie abe|jia sy, "sjuspisal
1290} J0 Jaqunu Jueoiubis B Aq pasn uaaq Jou sey pial ay} awi jey; Buunp pue sieaA Qg J0) abe||ia sy} ul paal| seH

£0/20/80

Houlueq “d "IN

ainin} @i ul paau Aew abE|jIA aU3 SSIUIOB] Jeym UMOLD JoU S| i S8 abueyd 0] pamol[e aq jou pinoys puegy

ay Jo snie)s ‘abeua sy} jo Led sejeaib e o) 9|qissa00e pue sAldRINE ‘[RS8 SJOW ST UdIum sjgeliene sI 9okds uado
Jao (s1ybiu aauoq “5°9) suoiseo00 S1el ue 1daaxs Aliolew aul Aq pash Ajoasus]ixe U9ag JaASU SEY UOHEDO| SII

0] anp Inq Aj@al} asn 01 [ 10} d|qe|ient usaq sey pue] a|doad [eoo] Jo Jaquunu Juedipubis B Ag paiolus Jou Jenbal
Jayuau are uonesidde aul Ag pawiejo saaoy siebe|iia Jo Alofew syl o [eloyausg aq Jou pinom uoneddde

oy -sBeusw 0] [10UNOY) Yslied dayj 0} 143 pue AJluswe ue se Weysialip Jo ajdoad ay) 0} uaalb sem pue| ayL

L0/L0/Ee

Hoyiyeq "¢ "SIy

aidoad [296] 16 1equunu JUBSHIUBIS € AQ pasn Uaaq sey pue] oL} Jey} wieo ajewybs] ou aq Ued aisyl ‘eousH ‘abe|jia

ayy ul sadeds uado Y0 [BI9ASS Bl a1ay) — abe|jA 8yl Ul saiior) 1aylo Ag obe sepeoap papasiadns sem ease
[BUOITES199) B SE Plol4 UOHERLOIO) JO 8sn IBASMOH "uoiiensiBal [euuo) 0} Uonoalgo ou pInom alay 0s uaalgy abelia
3y, SE UMouy ApEalje [2LOWSW Jem U} Jo Jeal au} 0} pue (S002 — S66 L) 10UN0D ystied 3y} Jo UeueyD) Jswio

L0/20/€L

e "IN N |

Page 24

"LJons SB plald uoneuolod
la1si6a1 0} mco;omﬂo Auew aJe 818y} jnq ‘UasiL) abe|iA B S [eLOWSW JEM L} pulyaq pue] sy} jo uonelisibal aul 0}
algo o1 Ao ase mad Aunwwos 1abie| au} 1o} opiacid pue sanjioe] ey abeia Jeliag spesu weysialip — abejia

ay} Aq papasu mou AjluslWe WapoW & ajealo o} Ayunpoddo aui 1s0] aaey |im abe(ia sjoym ay) uay) usalsy abejin
e se paJalsiBal s| pue| ay) §| "pouad palinbal au} Joj pBid ucieuoIo)) syl pasn Augnbal saey sjueligqeyut jo Jsgquinu
weoubls e ey padnbai jooid 1ebe| auyy apiaoid 0] [fe} pue S910BINOJRUI JO JaquinU B Urejuod uoneddde ay) uyjim

PAUIBIUOS SJUSWAIE]S SSOUNAA "SIeak 2 Jan0 10} WeYSISIIA Ul POAI SBH “|IDUN0Y Usiied WRYSIOWIA 01 JJB[0 JauLIo

L0/20/LL

uossayD "y "SI

"PUE| 84l SPjoY |IDUNCY) USHEG aul ydiym Japun suolpuod ay Aq pajoaiold Ajorenbape si puej 8yl
1oUnon ysed ayl jo uoissiwiad sseldxa sul UIM USaq SABY O} PAISPISUOD 8¢ 910/0404] Isnuwt asn s)) pue ‘punoib
uoes.031 & se ognd ay} Ag 8sh 0] S[qe|leAR SPBLW PUE [IDUN0Y Yslied 8yl Ag pauleiuiew ussq Sey piald UolieuoIo)
"SJUBNGRYUI [200] 10 Jaguwinu Jueomubisul ue Ajuo AQ pasn sI )l sk uasi abejia e se uonelsiBal 1o} eLsuo [eBs)

ay] e 192W 10U SQ0P puUe| Ayl ‘SIeaA U203l JSAO SBIJIAIIOR [BUOIIESI0AL 1O} PUE| 8y} Buisn suoAue passaulim Jaasu
aABY 2oUsUIBdX9 UMO WL PUR Pasn ajpll AlaA aweoaq plald UoHBUCIO) SIUL JaHY "MSIA SPUBIPOO A 1B papirod
sem ease Aejd Mmau e A|jeniuaas pue Jiedaisip ol 9] wawdinbe Aeid eyl /961 Ui gnio sliods ay) Jo Buiuado aui 01
Joud UsJp)IyD J0) P11 [[BQIOC) B SB PASN SBM P9Il UL "a)S S|gRNNS B Se PalUSPE SEM Pl2l4 UOIBUOIOY) "WRYSISIM
Ui }jing aq 01 [y abeia mou e 10} pesu pauiuspl [esieidde afiep "sJeak g1 10 JO|IOUNOY) YSLied LEUSISIIAN

L0/£0/8%

uossayd "d N




“alge|ens

aq Jabuo| ou pinom uondo siy ‘usasn abe(ip e se paselsiBal si pue| au) §| |ley ebefiA mau e pjing o] ysim Aew
Aay) owod 0} s1esh ul — abe]|ia sy} Jo sluspIsal ainny 1o} Bale sIY} Buisiin Jo uondo ay) urelal o} JaSIM I ] “IaYEem
Bop [euoIsEO00 By} Ag 8SN PBAISSQO JaAd AJUO SABH “moU pasn Ajpsel pue abeia syl jo Atsydusad ay) uo si piaig

£0/90/9¢

Sutuuepy
TSN pUB N

“Iounog ysued pajosia AiNp o JO UCHESIUIWPE aUf) Jspun UBUIS] PINOYS plal} 34| "US3IL) abe|iA € Se parsjsibal
Bureq feuowaw Jem sy} pulyaq pue| 0} uonoalgo oN “Aouspisal o sIeah Gg BuLNP UOISEOD0 SUO UG plal o)
pasn Ajuo pue piay syl Wodj spseA paipuny jo 8|dnoo e saar] Juediubisu si pajy oyl esn oym ojdoad jo Jequinu ay |

£0/20/€0

18I "d N

"91IS P9l UONBLOIOD ai UG |[ey abej|ia M3U & JO UOlONASUGD au} 10} Hoddns ppe o} &3 PINO

£0/90/Se

YUWS-pAoIT 'Y "id

“$S61 Ul punoib uonesidal B sk asn ANUNWLIOD 10} paseydind sem 3l @dUis pue| ay) osn o} uoissiuLad
pey sAemie aney oidoad (2207 "siayiem Bop maj A1aA B pue pial) o) 0} JUSdR[PE BAI| OUM ULJPIIUD 3Wos Aq st soed
9¥e} S0P Yoiym asn Ajuo au) — siseq Jeinbas e uo pue| syl asn oym ajdoad Jo Jequinu JUeoyIUBIS B 10U aJB aiay ]

£0/£0/01

pesH "M "SIN

"aIayi1|ing aq |Im ey abe|ia mau 1ey) padoy si 1 se pajueib aq jou pjhoys
sniels jo abueyy "puel ay) Buisn ajdoad Jouio 99s Ajples Aiaa pue yoam e salw Jo 9|dnos & a)is aiyl uo Bop JEem

£0/90/42

AonreH ‘© Iy

"ale|IA 8U3 JO SUPSING 8y} Uo Uolead| eseydiad spjal 9y} JO JNSaI B SE JSn-Japun o] anp Mal/\ PUBIPOOAA Ol paAoW
SeM SIU} Ing pidl4 uclieuoIo) uo Juawdinbe Akld 8q o) pasn sisy | bl Jo SB, usag JouU SBY aSN 21081811 661

ur passed sMEJ9AQ Ul |10uUno)) yslied syl Aq abe|jia au) 0} pajueif a1am asn 10 sybiy "saijiurey Aq posh A[DAISUSIXS SI
Tey) uoifesol jnjasn pue [eRUS0 aJowl B Ul Usalb abe(a passisibBal e sey Apealfe abejiA Alunwwoo usued sjoym ay)
woJy aidoad (200 J0 Jequinu Juediubls e Ag pasn usad Jou SeY p|al sy} PUB SJeak 8E J0) WeySIBlIA Ul PaAl aAeH

£0/£0/80

ueuLeH a1 AN

"$910BIND0RUI JO JSQWINU B URIUOD SIUBWSIEIS SSBULAA “SI19)|em Dop AQ S| MOU P[l} 8U) 1O asn Uiepy

"Buikeld uaipliyo ma} e woly pede aJoy) as|e suoAue 9as A[a1el INg SYEM IO} Plal) Y] USIA AJBUOISEDO() "SUOHEIS|aD
anjuoq siead om] 1sed ay 10} JBQUISAON Ul al1am d)doad ¢ Inoge uey) alow Ag pasn piail ay) Buless jjesas
SU0ISE200 A|UO 8y} - aun 1eyl Buunp pjal) ayi Jo asn olgnd s A19A USaS pue SIBSA 22 10} WEUSISWA Ul DOAN SABH

£0/L0/10

R

"abey|in au 1o J1JaUSq By} 10} Bup{et uoISIdsp AUE JO |0JJU0D UIRIS] O} I0UNGD) USHied pajos|s A|feso
o} SMO|[e UoiERN)S Jua.LNo B sealeym abelia ayl woly Aeme puel Jo aoaid sy BuipreBal Bupfew UoISIoap Aue oxe)
pinom usalr) abejii e se uonelnsiBalt 'siebe||a [800] 8y} Jo JBUSg By} 0} pasn aq o} abeliA oy} 0) uaAIb sem pue

L0/20/41

Byoleid " "IN

Page 25

"Al[00] 81 JO SIUSPISSI 8y} JO JeqLunu JUEeDIUBIS B AQ pasn JOU SI H 'pal} B3 OJUO YOEq
yolym sasnoy ur Buinlf uaipliyo awos Aq pasn aq Jybiw p[ay; Ul ISIIUAA "9SN BINJNy 101181 A|9I19NaS PINOM UoHEASIBa)
usa.L) abe||ia “weysiaim 1o abe|[iA 8y} Jo Jsuaq ay) 1o} IoUNCD Ysied Sy} O} USAID sem Plal{ UOIeUsIon)

20/20/52

neldAg “M N

“abesn aininy s}l apIoap 0} [IoUN0D) USLied auj Jo [04U0d ayu} Japun

o] aq pINoys Il — JJ2Uaq OU SAI9S pInom UsaL) abe(IIA B SB piol4 uoleuoio) JaisiBal o] ‘seoeds uado 1o souepunge
UE SBY WeUSISIIAA "9SN 31| Usas Sey p[al] a4 ‘awWl eyl a0uIg "PEOI UlBwW ASNg oy} $S0I2 0] Uspjiyo Jo) snojabuep
00} PaIapiSU0d Sem JI Se 8lis mau e 0} obe sieah 6 10 g p(ald UCIIBUCIOY) WO PIAOLIRI Slam Juawdinbe Aeid

9y "usaq sey Jeasu pue yoyd 183010 B 10 ||egio0) B Joyle Sk pasnh aq o} Ybnous abie} 1ou si piai syl -abe|ia sy}

JO Jjauaq 2y} Jo) ‘pSE 1L Ul uolleuop e uim paseyaind ‘ebeilia oy} Jo) 19SSE U SB [I9UNoD) UsLBd 2l AQ PAUMO SI puE

L0/£0/90

netang 'Y ‘SIN

"aw AU Je asn 0} SISBE||IA 8y} 10} [IDUN0D)
8yl JO uoissiwIad YUm asn Joj SigelieA. usad SBY )i “URIUIEW O} [IDUNOD USUEY aU) 0] palisjsuel) pue paseyoind
Sem pue| ay sy asn Jejnfas 1o pjey syl asn oym sjdoad jo ssquinu jueoyUBIS B 2l aiey) Jey] JOpISUOD J0U S80(]

L0/20/51

ROl " "sSIN

: "SI90B([IA 3U} JO |[e Jjausq
PINOM YoM ([eY 8bejiia meu & O uolonlisuod ainny s|gissod auy ¥90(q O} USIM OUM SIUSPISal [0 [NjpuEy B Jojisnljou
pue abe||ia ajoym 8yl Jo} pue| sy} ureluIew 0] 1yBli SUI dARY PINOYS [I0UNOY) Ysiied 8y ‘aBEjIA aU) UM o|gqelene
are aoeds uado Jo sealre Jo( "pue] 8y} Buisn suoAue Usss JaAsU SBY — SOSE | DOUIS WEYSISHIA 10 Juspisay

£0/20/81

#ng 'S 'sIN




‘irey abeja

mau e Jo Bupling ejqissod ayy Juaaaud o] st uoneoydde oy Jo asoding ruasub abe|in B UM PolEIDoSSE SBIIAIDE aY)
1o} pasn s punoiB suods au) “plel ay; ojuo dorqg seiuadoud asoum sidoad asou Ag Aj2jos pasn 1 Y — usalr) abejia
B SE pue| 8} 85h SUOAUE US3S J1aAsu aaey swi) Teyl Buuinp pue siesh || Joj WeysIaiiaA Jo JUspIsSal uaad aAeH

£0/L0/01

dIoop-Jeouads 'S "SI

"Alessaoauun 210j218U] SI US3IY) abE(IA B Se pue| ayl JO uonensibay

-olignd a4} o1 p|aly aui Jo asn pue awAioclua jo B sy} aAeb yoiym piai4 uoneuoson) Buiuianob sp/61 aul

wouj smejedq paonpoud sucswos ‘Bunsaul abejjia Juaoal € 1y "usalb abe|ia & jo uoljulep paidasoe AjeuLIou ay} 0}
sSuuIoJuD Ajptey paji} oyl — Apealle sadeds uado Jo Jaquuinu B sey WeYSISAA "PIaY S| 218} abe||IA [enuue sl a1aym
os[e s yaiym ‘punoiB spods sy uo soeld axe) SalAIOR [BuNnWWOo? Jo Buniods Auy “1eyem Bop [2uoIsesdo ay) ueu;
Jaylo pue| ay) uo aorjd Buniel SeIAOE AUR JO S/BME USS( JAASU 9ABY PUE SIEaA UDASS JO) WRYSISIIAA Ul POAY OABH

£0/20/90

UOWO|0g
"6) "SIV PUB "IN

"‘pabueyd aq Jou piIneys

SNIELS JUSLIND S} di0jalaY) pue sasodind Isio 1o} palinbal SI P4 UOHBUCIOD Uaym 91Ul B aWoo Aew aiay) ‘abe|a
a1 ul yoos Bursnoy ur aseasoul ApEsS aU} 0} 8N JUSLLUOIIALS JSJES B J3J0 PUB JUSIUSALOD D0 aJe Loiym saoeds
uado Jauio ate asey] ‘peol ulew Aq sease pajeindod jsow ay) wo.y pajeledsas pue affefia ayy Jo abpe sy uo pajens
SI puB| — piay sU1 10 ash AUB PaAIasHo Alalel skl ‘SieaA GE 1S ayl Ul weysisiipy ubnoay syem wenbaly Buung

£0/20/S1

amoy " "SIN

"ysiied sy} o sisalalul 1Sag |y} Ul JSpISUOD ABU) SB UnJ 0} [Iounos USiied ay) JO [0Ued palanajun
3y} Ul urewWaI piNOYS pral} ey, ystied au} ul asceds uado jo Ajuad st 2ua1 ] "0S SUOD J9AS BABY M) AJBA Ing
‘pIal 2y asn o1 B s} pue uoissiuLIad UL peY SAem[e aABY SIDUOIYSLEY "SIedh 02 J8A0 WRYSISNIAN Ul PaAY aneH

L0/L0/€2

A9IPIY "SI pue "AsY

“IDUNCY Used [B20] 9UL 1O Spuey 4]
U1 Yol 84 pInoys plal4 UoneueIo Jo [04ue)) "adeds uado agnd jo Auald sey Apealie WRUSISIUAA "Pasn a1l Alaa ag
0} panslaqg S1 i mou YBnoyye Bale UoIEa10al [BWIOJUI UB SE [IDUNno?) Ysied oy} Aq paueuietl uasaq sey Jjosy peid
UoiTEUoIOY) "UuspJel padeospur| B ojul paulojsuel] Sem Ued ‘LGEL Ui Iounos) ysued syl Ag paseuosind sem pue

£0/20/01

noued 'S "SIy

"SaWI} € PI91d UCNBUGIOY pasn
Ajuo aaey ‘sieak g Aliesau Joy abejia ay; ul paall Buaey "siseq feinbal B uo abe(ia ajoym au3 AQ pasn uayl sl 1l jeyl
05 als auy) uo ob pnoys jjey abe)n mau pauue|d ‘1ounos syl Ag paurgluiew Apesie seoeds uado Jsyio Jo Ausid
ale alay] ‘Bunjem Bop Joj Aliofew Aul e Ag pash 1aaa AjUO SI U ‘asn syl Jo) aBelpa oy} 0] 48] sem pue| yBnouly

L0/20/€¢

SWesN " "SI

Page 26

Aessagau i [[ey obeiIa mau B pling 0} a|qissod aq pinom ) Udiym uo soeds siqe|iea. ue S| pue| Juasald 1y "siayem
Bop ma} e pue saiyuog abejin £ noqge 10} 1daoxa pialy ay) Jo osn 1ealf ou Uses oAeH "pasn Ajolel alem salljioe

ay] 1nq piai4 uoieuo.to uo wawdinba Aed Buijieisul Juads sem Aauow s|qeiapIsuod ‘obe siesh 1 Inoqy "0661
BOUIS WRYSISHIAA Ul PaA SeH "uaaln) abe|jia & jo esodind auj eates 0} pres aq Aingy ueo uspieb padeospue| aul
Alue Ing ‘abe(ia auy o) aoeds uado sk uanif alam puiyaqg piai Jalie| oyl pue [BUOWSW fem 8l pulyag Bale ayl yieg

£0/40/60

preufep r-sIN

*RIUNwWiloo sjoym ay} Jo njeuaqg au} oy

pue| ay} joajuod pue afeuew o] WBU sY) UiElal pINoUS [I9UN0Y) YSHE By} pue sluapisal (200} 10 Jaquinu ueoniubis

e AQ pasn 1ou sI pialq UolIBUDIC) *(JIoUnos ysued auy) wody uoissiuuad yum) Aued aiyuog auy Joj deoxe pjal

8} JO 9sn [eucliealdal AUE Uaas JoAaU aABH "piall 8y} asn o) sisbejiia 0 uoissiuliad aalfi pial4 uoneuo.loen) o} Buies.
SME[BAQ 8Y ] 'Senssl Alojes pue uoljelolslep Jusudinbs 0] snp pssnispun sI }l SB OIS [B9p] UE 8 pinom piald
uoljeuolon) Jeul 84 [1ouUnon uslied ay| ‘|ley abeja mau & Joj pasu syl pajybiubily /661 w fesieidde sBejjia oy

£0/L0/81

Usely 's "SI

‘uoieandde ey} AQ paquosep ey se
yons sbesn uaas 1aASU SARY PUB SIBaA (2 19A0 10} afie|iA aul Ul paAll aaeH “plall aut 2sn o] siabeia 01 uoissiwad
anib )l 0} Buneal smepAq pue WeysIsNIA Jo ysued au) jo 1jsuaq 8y} J0j SE1 Ul IYBNog sem plal4 UOIBLOIOT

LO/20/L)

use "IN

“gore sl eyejnbal pue aA1esaid 0}
aoe|d ul Apeaile ale smejedg 'siesh g 158 sy} 1oA0 asn [eseush jo aleme usaq Jou aAey pue pjaly ayy uo sBop peyem
aABH "peol 8y} 0 8500 Ajsnolsbuep pue 1dwsyun st it se uaain) abeliA & se uonesiBal 4o} ajgeuns Jou $| puer

L0/£0/€0

freysepy
WY USIIN pue ‘I




"s1esA gg ise] oy 10} uoIssiuLad Yum pamojje Uaaq aney uoieoldde sy} ui 0} paliajes SaIliANOR

1Bl sueall Yolum plal4 UOHBUOIOD U0 LUONESI0I JO SWLIOJ (e 10} Pays!aeIss aiom smeiahq 6261 U] "deays Aq
pazeib sem pial au} 1261 01 9961 "pepassal pue paybnoid sem It ‘bgg L U} “suoneinbal (legroo) wnwuw Jog yénoua
3pIM Jou Sem 1l pue 1950110 aBe|iia 1o} plelNo YBNouS Jou Sem 181 ING FSE | Ul IUNOY) Ysted ayy Aq peseyoind
Sem pldi4 uolieuoio] Iounog usied Weyslsliip sy} uo aoiales sieah Iybie ‘sieak 69 Jo) WRYSISNIA Ul POA SEH

£0/20/80

PCOM Y "IN

‘UMBIDLIM

8 pinoys pue pame|) A|snouss ale sjuswalels pue uonealdde syl "pjald UOBUCIOD UO e aBe|IA Mau 2y} Joy
luasuoo Butuueld Joyg 1ouno) ybnolog plojusy o1 Jeyl pue uonedndde usair) abejjiA au) usamiag MUl Jesjo B s a1ay ]
‘uofiealidde ay} Yum Papiwigns SJUSWTEIS SSOUIM U] UIUIM

PaUIEjUod SalRINOJBUY JO J8quUNU B OS[e 8. 9811 ), ‘puUB| 8y} Uo pasiaednsun Aeld 0} USIPIYD L1BY) MOJ[E PINOM
€A1U0 Jeul punoy sjusied £g jO ABAINS Jusdal B — peoJ Ulew Agresu ey} o} Bunele. sanssi Ajajes 0} anp pasiadnsun
a1y} Aejd o} usIpIIYD e MOJ[e Jou |Im sjuased Auew asneoaq Ajsed ‘pash Jopun yonui st piald4 UOKRUCION)

(on0qe 995) YU " "SI JO JeY) O] [BIRUSP! L0//0/L0 JO JONST

L0/0L/0)

L0/L0/ET
£0/40/10

SHOONIM "d "IN

byt Jo se jouU puR UoIssIwiad
Uum uaag sey pialj syl Jo asn Aue jeu) pue sixe smejaAd Jey) sieme Usaq sABY SJUBNGERYUI WIS} BuoT snieys
si abuey2 0] uonuaod AlyBiy aq pinom Y pue (jey abeja Buisixe sy) 4o} ueyd juswdojpaspal B jo Led suLoj pisi

£0/40/€0

SHEM T "SI

“UOIE.ISPISUOD LWUOY) PSpN|oXa aq o] |2y 96.](IA MaU & 10} 8)i$ SMOIAGO JSOW By} MOJJE 10U JSNW 18] SoI|iOE} Ma}
Asn sey abe[lIA ojoym e se abe||IA d1) JO SPaaU 2NNy pUE SISAISTUL BUL BAISS 0} IDUNOD USUEY a4} JO uonopsun|
dU} Jepun ueWal PINOYs pueT *)l 0} JusvE[pe BA]| oYM asoy) eyl Joyio sBej|ia sy} Ul aidoad mey Asaa AQ pasn i puer

L0/80/¥2

I81A1 " "SI pue "I

‘Iounod ysied ayi jo Aligisuodsal au} UlgWS) pinoys

PI2!4 UOIBUOIOY PUE SEIQ INOYNIM AHUNLLILIOD Sj0UM BU JO SPasu au} Juasaidal 0] anunuos pnoys [12UNC) Yslied
“Bop zrey) Bupiiem uosied suo oy ydsoxa pue| syl uo soe|d Bune) SajAlloe ou paalasqo aneH “umolbiano Alaa
Bliodaq sey pue pasn 8[|l S11| )l 9SN O} Ysim pinom oym asou} 1o} saljioe) Bupyied ou sepiacid pue uoileoo] [enuad
€ Jou SI pjal 8y "piel4 uoneuolo) uo jley abe(ia papaau yonw e jo Buipiing suj Jusas.id o) idwane ue si uoneo|ddy

£0/90/G5¢

Jamel) g N

"PUE| QU Uo |feY aDE(IA mau € Jo Bulp[ing au JusAdid o) Jdusle UE s uoijeo)ddy

"awi Aue ye pjay oy esn 0} bl sy pue uoissiuwiad sy pey aaey abeyA sy o ajdoad yons se pue smejaAq

umo sy sey )| “abeia a1 Joj pial) [euolesIoal e se papiaoid pue pGa| Ul palnboe sem plaly ay | pIal U} Uo aoe|d
uae] sey aiyuog [eoo] au ‘sieah g 1se| 8y} Jan( "siavem Bop mey Atea e Ag pialy sy} 0) Jusoelpe oAl oum ua.pIyo
3y} Jo auwos Aq A|feuoiseo20 Aluo pasn si Il — paly aui Buisn AreinBal ejdosd jo Jequinu Juesyubis  Jou aie aual]

L0/L0/41L

pooBoo | W I

‘PoIOLESBI B PINGT asn ainin) st pue| 8y} uo uonolisal B Ind o} Aud e g pjnops -osn AUE Uaas Jonsu
aAey pue Sop yim sAep jsow uo pue| 8y} ssed — j1U JSOWIE S| 9sn Juasaid ‘SUOHBAISSQO UMO LLOIS ‘Aunwwios sy} jo
SisaJo)ul I9piM ay) Joddns 0) pash 8q PINOYS Pidl4 UCHBUCIOD MOY 0} SB UOJSIOSIP SH UIela) PiRoYS [1oUncs) ystied

£0/90/92

PPLL T "SI

Page 27



APPENDIX E:

Copy of byelaws relating to
application site

PROPOSED BYELAWS RELATING TO THE VILLAGE GREEN AND
RECKEATION GROUND, WITTERSHAM.

BYELAWS made. under Section 164 of the Public Health Act
1875 by the Parish Council of Wittersham with respect to
a pleasure ground and a recreation ground, ,

(1) sThrégghout these byeiaws the expression !'the Council?
means the Parish Council of Wittersham and the
expression !'the ground' means the Village Green and
the recreation ground known as the Coronation Playing
Field, Wittersham.

(2) An act necessary to the proper execution of his duty
on the ground by an officer of the Council ox by any
person or servant of any person employed by the
Council shall not be deemed an offence against these
byelaws.

(3)(i) A person shall not except in the exercise of any
lawful right or privilege bring or cause to be

“brought on to the pleasure ground known as the Village
Green any barrow, truck, machinelor vehicle -other
than: -

(a) a wheeled bicycle or other similar machine;
(b) a wheel-chair or perambulator drawn or
| propelled by hand and used solely for the
conveyance of a child or children or an
invalid,

Provided that where the Council set apart a space on
the ground for the use of any class of vehicle this
byelaw shall not be deemed to prohibit the driving in
or to that space by a direct route from the entrance
to the ground of any vehicle of the class for which
it is set apart.

(ii) A person shall not except in the exercise of any
lawful right or privilege ride any bicycle or other

similar machine Jﬁxg%gspart of the pleasure ground



(4)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

known as the Village Green.

A person shall not on any part of the Village Green

skate on rollers, wheels or other mechanical

contrivances to thé danger of any other person using
the Village Green.

A person shall not cause or permit any dog to enter

or remain on the ground unless such dog be and

continue to be under proper control and be effectively
restrained from causing annoyance to any person.

A person shall not affix any bill, placard, or notice

to or upon any tree, or to or upon any part of any

building, seat or other erection on the ground.

A person shall not except in pursuance of a lawful

agreement with the Council ox otherwise in the

exercise of any lawful right ox privilege bring or

cause to be brought on to the ground any beast of 5

draught or burden or any cattle, sheep, goats ox

pigs.

Every person who shall offend against any of the

foregoing byelaws shall be liable on summary

conviction to a fine not exceeding Fivelnnﬁméajxnmds.

Every pexson who shall infringe any byelaw for the

regulation of the ground may be removed therefrom

by any officer of the Council, or by any constable,

in any one of the several cases hereinafter specified:

that is to say:-

(i) where the infraction of the byelaw is committed
within the view of such officer or constable,
and the name and residence of the person
infringing the byelaw are unknown to and cannot
be readily ascertained by such officer or
constable;

(ii) where the infraction of the byelaw is committed
within the view of such officer or constable,
and, from the nature of such infraction, ox from

any other fact of which such officer or constable

Page 29



may have knowledge, or of which he may be
credibly informed, there may be reasonable ground
for belief that the continuance on the ground of
the person infringing the byelaw may result in
another infraction of a byelaw, or that the
removal of such person from the ground is
otherwise necessary as a security for the proper

use and regulation thereof,

Given under our hands and seals this EICHTH day of
MAY 1979
E.R. SWEATMAN (CHAIRMAN)
Slgnedl.‘ll....lI.l....l".ll‘.l..l..‘.‘.....l
Signed. . 40 .E.‘R.‘IQRN&. LI I I B .(Y};QEI—I l'lliRﬂMiAg)I L BN I

Members of the Wittersham Parish Council

The foregoing byelaws are hereby confirmed by the Secretary of State

and shall come into operation on the first day of August 1979.

Signed by authority of the Secretary of State, (R.F.D.SHUFFREY) ,

An Assistant Under Secretary of State,Home Office,London,SWl 18th July 1979.

This printed copy of the Byelaﬁs is a true copy of the byelaws as
confirmed by the Home Office.

C.C. PICKEN

Clerk to the Parish Council

Upgraded by authority of the Parish Council, 9th February 1993
Signed:  B.F. WRIGHT (CHATRMAN) M - el —
Signed:  R.W.C.WINTERBOTHAM  (VICE-CHAIRMAN) T MM IO =
N
M.J.MOULE, AN Emé

Clerk to the Parish Council

Page 30




oo 005065 wigsoo 00006G g0 00G689

oo DT T .
8007 ‘BEZ6L00CL 19GUINL B0LBOIT ABAING BOUBUPA) ParDY dakgeos "OSpHA bpdgo-Reny UPIQ j0 wojssIued Aq PapNpOidey

>OMSUIGOY

lanbayn

Plan showing locality in which users reside
(with application site shown hatched and
users' addresses shown with a star)

APPENDIX F:

181

T — ]

%

----00822k

oS

‘4’ USsIL) SLp7

N
H_n_muu.acmﬂmm IR 000065

w0 005685

=220 000LE F

---- 005121



861
861

UOAT "d "IN
UCAT “H "SI
SIMST TN TSI
SIMST " N
MeaT g siy
Bury ‘W "SI

PS6 1
8461

Usergram showing use during material

APPENDIX G
period

8/61 DU Y "4

ua9Iiy v "IN
Alsjer g sy
unH
DUIRIIH SNl + N
femeyrey v 'sip

161

alaslIg + mc_vﬁ«m
WD "D .L@l
weyelsy 'y "ssiy
e A

pIo4 "5 "IN
Piod "a sy
abey 4 "sIN
CIEE N
ueloqg "M N
qeld "q I
qre1) D sin
uoxng ' ‘S
weAlg Y N
umoug siy + JN
woid | 90| so| ¥0| €0 20| 10| 00| 66| 86| 26 96 S6 | v6; €6 | ¢6| L6| 06| 68| 88| 28| 98 asn

4561




"900Z 01 9661 S! potied

jeusieW, 1Ak 0z 8y} ‘9002 Ul spew sem uoyeondde ayp sy “uolealdde Jo s1ep sy [un dn enULUOCD SN ays uojeoldde ey} jo esn,

861 NeAM "D N

661 UoieA ‘N TSI

ucleM Y sSIN

12sAL"a

SEWOY L 'g N

2861 uonns T s

0961 3uolg '3 "IN

9861 playdausg "o "SIy

[essny 'S ‘si

961 SIanY Uyor "IN

09614 Sianiy eoluer "N
SIoAY INDOBT S |

8561 lajued "H .%S_

861 Jlapnad "3 "sSIN

1 aqieikuuad T SIA

JBYeIAULSH " "IN

Auuad "IN TSI

6.6} abed ‘W "IN

661 SINAL "N "SI

€861 SN "D "IN

a|now "IN SIN

LB} apeaN ' "IN

L6l spesiN Y TSI

Wwolj | 90| SO| ¥O| 0| ¢0| FO| 00| 66| 86| 26| 96| G6| ¥6| €6| ¢6] L6| 06| 68| 88| /8| 98 193}




APPENDIX H: _ >
Copy of “regulation six” letter sentto -
applicant (dated 04/04/08) .

Mrs. M. Lewis . Environment and Waste
Mill House Invicta House
Wittersham ‘ ~ ﬁf;ﬁgoﬁzﬂ

Kent TN30 7EJ ' | Kont  ME14 1XX

Tel: 01622 221628
Fax: 01622 221636

Direct Tiner 01622 221628
* Ask for:  Melanie McNeir
Frail:  melanie.meneir@kent.oov.uk
Date: 4™ April 2008
Qur Reft VG/MM/592
Wehsite www.kent.govuk/

Dear Mrs Lewis,

Commons Registration Act 1965
Application to register land in the parish of Wittersham as a new Town or Village Green

As required by Regulation 6 of the Commons Registration (New Land) Regulations 1969, the County
Council has been giving further consideration to your application, and the objections thereto, in the 11ght
of the points made in your letter of 23" September 2007,

It is the County Council’s duty as registration authority under Regulation 6(3) not to reject an

application for registration of land as a town or village green without giving the applicant a reasonable
opportunity of dealing with the matters contained in the objection statements “and with any other matter
in relation to the application which appears fo tlze authority to afford prima facie grounds for rejecting

the application”.

-1 am writing to inform you that there do appear to the case officers to be matters affording prima facie
grounds for recommending rejection of your application to the Regulation Committee Member Panel, as

follows,

As you are aware, the County Council has been supplied by an objector with a copy of what appears to
be a printed copy of byelaws relating to the land comprised in your application (that is, the land known
as the Village Green and the Coronation Piaymg Field, Wittersham), made on 8" May 1979 and
confirmed by the Secretary of State on 18" July 1979 to come into operation on 1% August 1979,
certified by the then Clerk to the Parish Council as a true copy of the byelaws as confirmed. That seems
to the County Council to be good evidence that such byelaws were indeed made and confirmed on the
dates stated. The signatures dated 9" February 1993 of the then Chairman, Vice-Chaitman and Clerk
provide additional confirmation that the byelaws had been made, confirmed, and come into operation in

1979, and remained in force in 1993,

In your letter of 231 September 2007, you question whether the 1979 byelaws ever came into operation,
and dispute the proposition that if they did, they would have been relevant to the question whether
recreational use of the application land was “as of right”,

-

Linda Davies \f ‘\g‘i

Director of Environment and Waste ﬁ
Page 34 S o

INVESTORIN PEQPLE




As to the former, the County Council takes the view that production of a version of the 1979 byelaws
bearing an original signature on behalf of the Secretary of State is not essential, and that the coming into
operation of those byelaws may be established by other evidence. It expects that a thorough search of
the Parish Council records would further clarify the history of the 1979 byelaws.

The County Council can see nothing in section 236 of the Local Government Act 1972 to make the
validity or enforceability of byelaws dependent upon their being displayed at any location. Nor can it
see any requirement for a copy of the 1979 byelaws to have been sent to the Borough Council.

However, the view presently taken by the County Council is that to focus on the 1979 byelaws in
considering whether use of the application land was “as of right” is to miss the main point, which is
whether the land was acquired and has been held by the Parish Council for a purpose which was
inconsistent with recreational use by local people having been “as of right”. Prima facie, thatis the

case.

The totality of the land comprised in your application was conveyed to the Parish Council on 4" June
1954 by Style and Winch Limited. The conveyance, which you helpfully exhibited to your witness
statement, provided that the land was conveyed to the Parish Council “fo hold ... as a space for the

benefit of the Parish of Wittersham’”.

Your interpretation of that conveyance is that (to quote from your witness statement) “she intention was
Jor the land to be kept as an open space for the people of Wittersham”.

The County Council is disposed to agree with that interpretation, although a number of the objectors
take issue with it. Prima facie at least, the implication of the word “open” seems obvious and natural.

The next question to arise is under what statutory power the Parish Council was acting when it acquired
the application land, which the conveyance does not specify. However, the County Council interprets
the Court of Appeal’s decision in Attorney-General v Poole Corporation [1937] 1 Ch 23 as authority for
the proposition that an acquisition of land can be inferred to have been made in exercise of the powers
conferred by the Open Spaces Acts, or section 164 of the Public Health Act 1875, in the absence of

direct documentary evidence to that effect.

Section 7 of the Open Spaces Act 1906 (“the 1906 Act”) authorised conveyances of land for or without
consideration to parish councils “/or the purpose of the same being preserved as an open space for the

enjoyment of the public under this Act”. :

Section 164 of the Public Health Act 1875 (“section 164”) as originally enacted did not apply to patish
councils, and was not extended to apply to them until Schedule 14, paragraph 27 of the Local
Government Act 1972 (“the 1972 Act”) came into force. So the 1954 acquisition could not have been
made in exercise of that power. However, a comparable power was conferred on parish councils by
section 8(1)(b) of the Local Government Act 1894 (“the 1894 Act”), that is, power “to provide or
acquire land ... for a recreation ground and for public walks”. Section 8(1)(d) of that same Act
conferred power on parish councils “fo exercise with respect fo any recreation ground, villgge green,

Linda PDavies ) )
Director of Environment and Waste ‘ b&
Page 35 e

INVESTOR INPEOPLE -




open space, or public walk, which is for the time being under their control... such powers as may be
exercised by an urban authority under section one hundred and sixty-four of the Public Health Act 1875,
or section forty-four of the Public Health Acts Amendment Act 1890, in relation to recreation grounds
or public walks, and sections one hundred and eighty-three to one hundred and eighty-six of the Public
Health Act 1875 shall apply accordingly as if the parish council were a local authority within the
meaning of those sections ...”

Section 164 empowered urban authorities to “purchase or take on lease lay out plani improve and
maintain-lands for the purpose of being used as public walks or pleasure grounds...” and to make
byelaws for the regulation of such public walks or pleasure grounds.

At the same time as making the provisions of section 164 directly applicable to parish councils, the 1972
Act repealed section 8(1)(b) of the 1894 Act, together with parts of section 8(1)(d) (everything down to
and including “public walks, and”, and the word “accordingly”). Schedule 30. The view the County
Council takes is that land acquired and held as a public walk or recreation ground under section 3(1)(b)
of the 1894 Act up to that date (1% April 1974) was thereafter held under and for the purposes of section

164.

The 1979 byelaws were “made under section 164 of the Public Health Act 1875 ... with respect to a
pleasure ground and a recreation ground”. That points towards the application land’s having been
acquired under section 8(1)(b) of the 1894 Act, rather than under the 1906 Act.

In either case, the County Council’s understanding of the legal consequences is that all recreational use
of the application land by the inhabitants of Wittersham (or anyone else for that matter) would have
been “of right” or “by right”, rather than “as of right”. In R(Beresford) v Sunderiand City Council
[2004] 1 AC 889, the House of Lords considered whether the use for lawful sports and pastimes had
been pursuant to a statutory right, which would have been “inconsistent with use as of right” (per Lord
Bingham, at paragraph 9). They concluded that the land had not been held under any statutory provision
capable of conferring such a right, but for development purposes. What was said about the 1906 Act,
section 164, and similar provisions in other statutes was, therefore, strictly obiter. However, the County
Council respectfully regards their Lordships’ dicta as strong persuasive authority that land which is
acquired or appropriated by a local authority for the purpose of public recreation is not capable of
becoming a town or village green by virtue of use for that purpose.

In paragraphs 86-87 of his judgment, Lord Walker said this:

“A local resident who takes a walk in a park owned by a local quthority might indignantly reject
any suggestion that he was g trespasser unless he obtained the local authority's consent to enter.
He might say that it was the community's park, and that the local authority as its legal owner
was (in a loose sense) in the position of a trustee with a duty to let him in. (Indeed that is how
Finnemore J put the position in Hall v Beckenham Corpn [1949] 1 KB 716, 728, which was
concerned with a claim in nuisance against a local authority, the owner of a public park, in
which members of the public flew noisy model aircrafi). So the notion of an implied statutory

licence has its atiractions. &

Linda Davies ) ;
Director of Environment and Waste k
Page 36 Iy

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE




Where land is vested in a local authority on a statutory trust under section 10 of the Open
Spaces Act 1906, inhabitants of the locality are beneficiaries of a statutory trust of a public
nature, and it would be very difficult to regard those who use the park or other open-space as
trespassers (even if that expression is toned down to tolerated trespassers), The position would
be the same if there were no sz‘atutory trust in the strict sense, but land had been appropriated
Jor the pw ‘pose of public recreation.’

Land held under the 1906 Act is held on an express statutory trust for public enjoyment section 10.
While section 164 does not expressly refer to a trust, the courts have treated it as imposing on the local
authority landowner duties, analogous to those of a trustee, to hold, manage, and use the land for the
purposes of public recreation, and to allow the public access for that purpose. The public have a
corresponding right to enter the land for that purpose (subject to control by byelaws and any other
restrictions permitted by statute), In addition to Hall v Beckenham Corporation, a trustec-beneficiary
relationship between authority and public has been referred to in Attorney-General v Sunderland
Corporation (1876) 2 Ch D 634 (a case on the statutory predecessor of section 164) and Blake
(Valuation Officer) v Hendon Corporation [1962] 1 QB 283. In the latter case, Devlin LY said:

“... The purpose of section 164 of 1875 is to provide the public with public walks and pleasure
grounds. The public is not a legal entity and cannot be vesied with the legal ownership of the
walks and pleasure grounds which it is to enjoy. But if'it can be given the beneficial ownership,
that is what it should have, In the case of buildings, such as libraries and art galleries, the
needs of management may be deemed to require the local authority to vetain the right of
occupation. But the local authority has no right to retain out of lands intended for the enjoyment
of the public a right of occupation that is not necessary for their management. In all the cases in
which parks have been considered it has been taken for granted that what the public gets is, as
in the case of a highway, the beneficial ownership of the land...”

The idea that section 164 imposes a statutory trust for public recreation has since been given statutory
recognition in sections 122 and 123 of the [972 Act.

The position in respect of land acquired under section 8(1)(b) of the 1894 Act would appear to have
been analogous. A

The conclusion the County Council draws from the material supplied to it by the parties is that, prima
facie at least, use by local inhabitants (and others) of the land comprised in your application has been
pursuant to a statutory right (or licence), and was not “as of right” within the meaning of the definition
of “town or village green” in the Commons Registration Act 1965.

The County Council takes the view that a period of six weeks would allow you a reasonable opportunity
to consider and investigate the above matters; take legal advice (if so desired), and produce any rebuiting

evidence which you may have.

Linda Davies f
Director of Environmnent and Waste

Page 37 -.,-\4—
INVESTOR IN PEOPLE




I would be grateful if you would accordingly let me have your response to the points made above, and
any additional evidence that you would like the County Council to take into account when it next
considers your application, ne later than Friday 16"™ May 2008. If you find yourself unable to meet
that deadline, please let me know as soon as that occurs, If we have not heard from you by that date, the
County Council will proceed fo further consider your application and the objections thereto, in
accordance with Regulation 6 of the 1969 Regulations, on the basis of the information and documents

which have been supplied to it by the parties.

I should draw to your attention that in Oxfordshire County Council v Oxford City Council [2006] UKHL
25, [2006] 2 AC 674, Lord Hoffmann said (at paragraph 61) that “... the registration authority has no
investigative duty which requires it to find evidence or reformulate the applicant’s case. It is entitled to
deal with the application and the evidence as presented by the parties”.

This letter is being copied to the objectors, and to the Parish Council as landowner, with an invitation to
comment upon if, or provide any further relevant information or evidence, as they see fit,

T look forward to hearing from you in due course.
Yours sincerely,
/A", /L/& " \_f -

Miss. Melanie McNeir '
Public Rights of Way Officer — Definition Team

Linda Davies { N
‘ s

Director of Environment and Waste

by}
: 4
Page 38 A~

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE

Anmnin




APPENDIX I
Applicant’s response to “regulation snx”
letter (dated 23/05/08)

Application to reqister land in the Parish of Wittersham as a Villag_e Green

Response to the letter from the registration authority,
Kent County Council, dated 4 April 2008

| note that the case officers consider that there could be prima facie grounds for rejecting the
application and | would respond to the points made in the letter as follows:

Contrary to the views expressed by the County Council | believe the Local Government Act

1972 section 236 does require the byelaws to be available for public inspection and in the case -
of Wittersham, which has no office, this would be at the offices of Ashford Borough Council.

Para. (8) of section 236 of the Act states:

(8) A copy of the byelaws, when confirmed, shall be printed and deposited at the offices
of the authority by whom the byelaws are made, and shall at all reasonable hours be
open to public inspection without payment, and a copy thereof shall, on application, be
furnished to any person on payment of such sum, not exceeding 20p for every copy, as
the authority may determine.

In July 2006 [ enquired about the existence of byelaws to Wittersham Parish Council and they
were not aware of any. Ashford Borough Council also confirmed that they do not hold any
byelaws relating to the land. It follows then that para 8 above could not have been adhered to.

You state that non-compliance with the requiremant of this section of the Act does not affect the
enforceability or validity of the byelaws. [ cannot agree with that point of view. It must be a
reasonable assumption that the intention of the Act, as drafted by Parliament, was to ensure
that measures were in place to make people aware of the existence of byelaws. In essence
there is little point having byelaws if no one knows of their existence, not least the authority
deemed to have made them. It seems doubtful to me that a Court wouid be able to enforce any
penalty for breach of the byelaws if the person committing the offence could. not reasonably
have been aware that they were doing anything wrong.

I make the above point because | feel it is important. However, | accept that matters relating to
the validity of byelaws are in fact not essential to the Council’'s argument as to why the land
would not qualify as a Village Green.

The Council's main argument hinges on how the Parish Council holds the land and under what
statutory powers it was acting when it was purchased.

I am heartened to note that the opinion of the County Council concurs with my own, and that of
many other villagers, that the intention of the Deed of Conveyance of 4™ June 1954 was for the
land to be held as an open space. The former Parish Council would not accept this argument
and this was the reason why the Village Green application was made.

The County Council is of the opinion that the land was purchased under statutory powers. An
alternative argument is that if the money to purchase the land was a gift then the land might

Page 39




have been purchased as a charitable trust. | am not sure that there is conclusive evidence to
support one view or the other.

| do nevertheless accept the view that the Parish Council hoids the land in trust, be it statutory
or charitable, to be kept as an.open space for the benefit of the Parish. This is a view held by
myself and many villagers from the outset. We feel that to develop the land would constitute a
breach of that trust.

The County Council argues that if the land was acquired for public recreation it is not capable
of becoming a village green and | quote from your letter which refers to the House of Lords
decision re. Beresford: :

*“ --the County Council respectfully regards their Lordships’ dicta as strong persuasive
authority that land which is acquired or appointed by a local authority for the purpose of
public recreation is not capable of becoming a town or village green by virtue of use for

that purpose.” .

I can see the logic of this argument as if this were not the case then every public park up and
down the country, of 20 or more years’ standing, could effectively be a village green.

However | would also expect the County Council to exercise consistency in the decision
making process and | refer you to your recent decision to register as a village green land
purchased for public recreation by Hawkhurst Parish Council. | would also mention the Public
Enquiry which has been recommended to determine the case at South Road Recreation
Ground in Hythe owned by Hythe Town Council. Both these cases involve land acquired or
appointed by a local authority for public recreation and as such I can see little to distinguish
them from the Wittersham case, bar the possible existence of byelaws which the County
Council in any case does not consider material to the arguments.

You will be aware that this application has been very controversial in the village and there are
strong views on both sides of the argument. However, if the County Council is minded to
recommend refusal of the application on the basis that the use has been ‘by right, not ‘as of
right’, then | am prepared to accept that point of view. | do not now feel a Public Enquiry would
be in the best interests of the village if the objective behind the application has been confirmed
by other means.

However, if any public authority, company or private individual were in the future to present
evidence that the land is not held in trust as recreational land then | would reserve the right to
resubmit a further application to register the land as a village green. There are many in the
village who would concur with Lord Justice Deviin’s point of view that it is the villagers who
have, “the beneficial ownership of the land’.

Finally I would like to make the point that this application was made out of a desire to protect
recreational land in the village, not as many have stated out of my own self-interest. | take
strong exception to the defamatory comments which have been made by some objectors about
me and other villagers who have provided witness statements. | trust that the County Council
will recognise and uphold the integrity of those who have made statements in support of the
application.

Miriam Lewis

23 May 2008

Page 40




Agenda ltem 4

Application to divert part of Footpath MR493 at Ditton

A report by the Divisional Director of Environment & Waste to the Kent County
Council Regulation Committee on 31 October 2008.

Recommendation: | recommend the County Council makes an Order
under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 to divert part of Footpath MR493
at Ditton.

Local Member: Mrs Trudy Dean Unrestricted

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to divert part of Footpath
MR493 at Ditton by Peter Brett Associates, on behalf of Aylesford Newsprint on
the grounds of increasing security and public safety around the Mill Pond.
Concerns have been raised due to the repeated acts of vandalism to the
bridge, which crosses the Mill Pond, over which the Public Footpath passes.

2. All liaison between the County Council and the landowner, Aylesford
Newsprint, has been conducted, at their behest, through their representative Mr
Alan Aston of Peter Brett Associates, 30 Tower Hill, West Malling, Kent, ME19
4PR.

Description of Route

3. The existing route of Footpath MR493 is shown by a solid black line
between points A and B and the proposed diversion is shown by black dashes
between points A and B on Appendix A to this report.

Procedure

4. The County Council may make an Order under Section 119 of the
Highways Act 1980 to divert a Public Right of Way if it is satisfied that it is
expedient to do so in the landowners interest and the route is not substantially
less convenient to the public, having regard to the effect of the diversion on the
public enjoyment of the route as a whole.

Consultations
5. Consultations have been carried out as required. No objections have
been received from the Statutory Undertakers. No response was received from

Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council or The Open Spaces Society.

6. Objections have been received from Aylesford Parish Council, Ditton
Parish Council and The Ramblers’ Association. All three objectors have stated

Page 41



that to divert the Public Footpath in order to remove the maintenance obligation
to the landowner is unacceptable and the vandalism could be resolved by using
metal decking.

7. Ditton and Aylesford Parish Councils both state that the diversion would
have a negative impact on public enjoyment by removing the unique
perspective of a picturesque Mill Pond. Ditton Parish Council has additionally
stated that the proposed route would be dangerously close to the M20 and the
proposed timber panels would not provide a sufficient safety barrier.

8. Due to the proximity of the M20 motorway, consultation was also carried
out with The Highways Agency in order to ensure - should the proposed
diversion go ahead - then no threat was posed to those using the route by the
traffic using the M20. The Highways Agency responded stating that a
representative has visited the area and provided the proposal did not encroach
on Highways Agency land they had no objections. They further added that
palisade fencing is already in place protecting the Mill Pond and that the
motorway verge was already protected by a safety fence.

View of Members

9. Mrs Trudy Dean, County Member and Borough Councillors Mr J
Clements, Mr J Balcombe, Mrs C Grant, Mr B Stone, Mr D Thornewell and Mr D
Smith, have been consulted. No responses were received from Mrs Dean, Mr
Clements, Mr Balcombe, Mrs Grant, Mr Stone, or Mr Smith. Councillor Mr
Thornewell believes the proposal is a reasonable one as it would retain the
views of the historic Mill Pond, which is a major feature of the Footpath.

The Case

10. In dealing with the application to divert a Public Right of Way,
consideration must be given to the following criteria of Section 119 of the
Highways Act 1980: -

a) Whether it is expedient in the interests of the owner of the land that the right
of way in question should be diverted;

b) Whether the point of termination of the path will be substantially as
convenient to the public given that it is proposed to be diverted to another point
on the same or a connecting highway;

c) Whether the right of way will not be substantially less convenient to the
public;

d) The effect that the diversion would have on public enjoyment of the path as a
whole;

e) The effect on other land served by the existing right of way;

f) The effect of any new public right of way created by the order would have on
land over which the right is so created and any land held with it.

| will now take these points and my conclusions upon them individually: -

Page 42



a) Whether it is expedient in the interests of the owner of the land that the
footpath in question should be diverted;

It is expedient to divert the path in the interests of the landowner. The primary
reasons for the application to divert Public Footpath MR493 relate to the
repeated vandalism to the bridge on the section of the route that crosses the
Mill Pond. This has not only given the landowner - to whom responsibility for
maintenance of the bridge rests - security concerns but also raised concerns
regarding public safety. Although inspection measures have been put in place
to reduce the health and safety concerns these will never remove the risks
completely.

The diversion of Public Footpath MR493 will remove the maintenance
responsibility of the landowner for the bridge, but the primary benefit to the
landowner will be the reduced health and safety obligations and risks.

b) Whether the point of termination of the path will be substantially as
convenient to the public given that it is proposed to be diverted to another point
on the same or a connecting highway;

The common points of termination (Points A-B) will not be altered and are
therefore as convenient.

c) Whether the right of way will not be substantially less convenient to the
public;

The existing route measures approximately 32 metres (A-B) and the proposed
measures approximately 46 metres (A-B). Although there is a small increase in
distance, the increase in length is de minimus when actually walking the route,
adding less than 1 minutes walking time. The width of the new route will be two
metres.

d) The effect that the diversion would have on public enjoyment of the path as a
whole;

Public enjoyment of the path as a whole will not be affected. The proposed
route will retain its views of the picturesque Mill Pond, with the current bridge
being removed to ensure these views remain unhindered.

Although the proposed route is close to the M20 the Highways Agency do not
see this as a safety issue, with adequate safety measures already in place to
protect the Mill Pond. The noise from the M20 is already audible from the
majority of MR493, which runs alongside the M20 for most of its length. The
noise levels will not be increased by virtue of being 5 metres closer to the
source of the noise on the proposed compared with the current route. The
erection of timber panels along the outer boundary of the proposed route will
further reduce the visual and noise impact of the M20.

e) The effect on other land served by the existing public right of way;
The effect of the diversion will have no impact on other land served by the
existing right of way.

f) The effect of any new public right of way created by the order would have on
land over which the right is so created and any land held with it;

Page 43



The new route created by the Order will have no impact on other land served by
the right of way.

| believe that the legal tests are met in all respects
Conclusions

11. A number of objections have been received to this proposal. These
objections are based on whether it was expedient to divert in the landowner’s
interest, on public enjoyment and public convenience. @ The Ramblers’
Association and Ditton Parish Council have both objected to the proposal
because they do not believe it is in the landowner’'s interest. There is an
obvious benefit to Aylesford Newsprint in terms of reducing their health and
safety obligations in regard to the bridge and the ongoing maintenance of the
structure, which requires constant repair following repeated acts of vandalism.

12.  Ditton Parish Council have objected on the grounds that the proposed
route is substantially less convenient to the public due to its proximity to the
M20, which they believe raises concerns over safety with the proposed
boarding being an insufficient safety barrier. Advice has been sought from the
Highways Agency concerning any possible safety implications on the new route
in relation to the M20. The Highways Agency has clearly stated that palisade
fencing is in position to protect the Mill Pond, with the motorway verge itself
already protected by safety fencing. The proposed route does not fall within the
boundaries of the highway. The majority of Public Footpath MR493 already
runs in close proximity and parallel to the M20 and there are no reported
instances of any safety issues relating to the M20. The proposed timber panels
will denote the outer boundary of the proposed new route, and will be erected in
addition to the palisade fencing and the safety fencing already in place. These
timber panels will shield the proposed route from the visual and noise impact of
the M20.

13.  Aylesford and Ditton Parish Councils have objected on the grounds that
the proposed route will have a negative impact on public enjoyment by
removing the view of the Mill Pond. This is not the case. The views of the Mill
Pond will be maintained and even enhanced by the removal of the current
bridge, which will provide views over the full width of the Pond.

Recommendations

14.  Despite there being objections to the proposal | recommend that the
County Council makes an Order under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980
to divert part of MR493, at Ditton, shown in Appendix A to this report, on the
grounds that it is expedient to divert the path in the interest of the landowner
without prejudicing the public’s enjoyment and that the Definitive Map and
Statement are amended accordingly.

Appendix A- Map showing the route and location.

Contacts: Sonia Coventry 01622 221512

Page 44



166900

158900

158800

i o

“This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material o finiséion bt Ordnance Survey on benaf of

. A |
roier of Her Mbjediy’s Stationery Offioe © Crown Copyright

‘Unauthorised oduction infri Ci ight and ledd top ution il proceedi / 2 > 7,
100019238 R008) b ‘mw’gm, f"’ﬁ 'TMM e m?& ,':/ - // i
1 1
571400 571500
Footpath to be deleted

= = = = = = =« Footpath to be added

s s s e e Unaffected Routes

APPENDIX A

158800

Highways Act 1980

‘ Kent County Council

/' Public Footpath MR493 (part) Ditton
Proposed Diversion

Scale 1:1,250 Linda Davies
Environment & Waste Director

County
Council

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



	Agenda
	3 Application to register land known as "Coronation Field" and "the Village Green" at Wittersham"  as a new Village Green.
	Item 03 appendices

	4 Application to divert part of Public Footpath MR493 at Ditton
	Item 04 Appendix


